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32ND ANNUAL REPORT
2024-15
NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the THIRTY SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the members of
KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED will be held on Monday the 29" September 2025 at 11.00 a.m.
through the Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio Visual Means (OVAM) to transact the following
business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, considerand adopt :

a. The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the company for the financial year ended
31st March, 2025 together with the reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors
thereon;and

b. The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the company for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2025 together with the reports of the Auditors thereon

2. Re-appeintmentof Mr. Bhushanlal Arora as the Executive Director of the Company.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 to appoint a Director in place of Mr. Bhushanlal
Arora (DIN No. 00416032) who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himselfl for re-
appointment”.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
3. Appointment of Mr. Gitesh Nimkar (DIN: 02342111)asan Independent Director
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, 161, Schedule IV and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) read with the Rules framed
thereunder, and applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Repulations, 2015, ("the LODR Regulations”) (including any statutory
modification or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), and the Articles of
Association of the Company, approvals and recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and that of the Board of Directors, Mr. Gitesh Nimkar [DIN:
02342111), who was appointed as an Additional Director in the capacity of an Independent
Director with effect from July 30, 2025, who meets the criteria for independence under Section
149(6) of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the LODR
Regulations and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a
member under Section 160(1) of the Act, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years July 29, 2030, and that he shall not be liable
toretire by rotation.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the
powers to any directors with power to further delegate to or any other Officer(s) / Authorized
Representative(s) of the Company to do all acts, deeds and things and take all such steps as may
be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

4. Appointmentof Mrs. Hufrish Variava (DIN :11219649) as an Independent Director
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To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, 161, Schedule IV and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) read with the Rules framed
thereunder, and applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Repulations, 2015, ("the LODR Regulations”) (including any statutory
modilication or re-enactment(s) thereofl for the time being in force), and the Articles of
Association of the Company, approvals and recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and that of the Board of Directors, Mrs. Hufrish Variava (DIN :
11219649), who was appointed as an Additional Director in the capacity of an Independent
Director with effect from July 30, 2025, who meets the criteria for independence under Section
149(6) of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the LODR
Regulations and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing [rom a
member under Section 160(1) of the Act, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years July 29, 2030, and that he shall not be
liable to retire by rotation.

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the
powers to any directors with power to further delegate to or any other Officer{s) / Authorized

Representative(s) of the Company to do all acts, deeds and things and take all such steps as may
be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

By order ofthe Board
For KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED

Bhushanlal Arora
Managing Director

Place: Mumbai
Date :16th August 2025

REGISTERED OFFICE:
UnitNo 283-287 F wing,

2™ floor, Solaris -1 SakiVihar Road,
Andheri (E), Mumbai 400072

NOTES:

1.

Pursuant to the General Circular No.09/2023 dated September 25, 2023, issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) and Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated
October 7, 2023 issued by SEBI (hereinafter collectively referred to as "the Circulars”), companies
are allowed to hold AGM through VC, without the physical presence of members at a common
venue. Hence, in compliance with the Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC.

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”), SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations”) and MCA
Circulars, the 32nd Annual General Meeting ("Meeting” or "AGM") of the Company is being held
through VC / OAVM on Monday, September 29, 2025, at 11:00 a.m. (15T). The proceedings of the
AGM deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company situated at Unit No 283-287,
“F"Wing, 2™ Floor, Solaris-1, SakiVihar Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai-400072.

AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY
TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A
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MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to MCA Circulars through
VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with in line with the MCA
Circulars and SEBI Circulars. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members
will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are notannexed to
this Notice. However, Body Corporates are entitled to appeint authorized representatives to
attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting;
however they are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/]PG Format) of its Board Resolution
authorizing their representative to attend the AGM as stated above. The deemed venue for the
32" Annual General Meeting shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

4. Pursuant to SEBI Listing Regulations and as per Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings, a
profile of the Directors who are proposed to appointed / re-appointed isset outin the Explanatory
Statement.

5. The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from 23™ September, 2025 to 29"
September, 2025 both days inclusive (Book Closure Date) for the purpose of 32" Annual General
Meeting.

6. In compliance with the various MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, the Notice of AGM is being sent
only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the
Company/Depositories and with the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company. Members
may note that the Notice of AGM and the Annual Report 2025 will also be available on the
Company's website at www.kaiserpress.com and website of the Stock Exchange
www.hseindia.com and on the website of the Purva e-voting.purvashare.com unless the Members
have requested for a physical copy of the same.

7. Attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose
ol reckoning the guorum under Section 103 ol the AcL.

8. For registration of email id for obtaining Annual Report and e-voting and User ID/password
updation of bank account mandates is annexed to this Notice use the link
http://www.purvashare.com/email

INSTRUCTIONS FORMEMBERS FORATTENDING THEAGM THROUGH VC/OAVM AREASUNDER :

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars
dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-
voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM /EGM. For this purpose, the
Company has entered into an agreement with Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited (Purva) for
acilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting
votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voling system on the date of the EGM /AGM
will be provided by Purva

The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/0AVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The
facility of participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000
members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders
holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM /AGM without
restriction on account of first come first served basis.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / | Pads for better experience.
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Further Shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the Meeting.

The Members are requested to notify any change in their registered address / residential status
immediately to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents; M/s. Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Lid,,
(hereinafter referred to as "Purva”) Unit No. 9, Shiv Shakti Indl. Estate, |.R. Boricha Marg, Off N. M. Joshi
Marpg, Near Lodha Excelus, Lower Parel (E), Mumbai - 400 011. In case of Dematerialized Shares, the
aforesaid information should be given to the Depository Participant with whom the Member has an
account.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities markel. Members holding shares in
electronic form are therefore requested to submit their PAN to the Depository Participants with whom
they maintain their demataccounts. Members holding shares in physical form should submit their PAN
to the Registrarand Transfer Agent / Company.

Members may note that the Rule 11 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; permits circulation of
Annual Report to shareholders through electronic means to such of the Members whose e-mail
addresses are registered with NSDL or CDSL or the shareholders who have registered their E-mail ID
with the Company and physical copies to those shareholders whose e-mail 1Ds have not been either
registered with the Company or with the depositories, if requested by them.

Keeping in view the Green Initiative taken by the Government and to save the cost involved in printing
and dispatch; Members are requested to register their e-mail addresses with the DPs, in case shares are
held in dematerialized form and with Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Lid in case the shares are held in
physical form and also intimate changes, if any, in their registered e-mail addresses to the Company /
DPs, from time to time.

Please note that as a Member of the Company, you will always be entitled to receive all communications
in Physical form, upon request.

SEBI through its circular dated December 3, 2018; has instructed that the securities of the Listed
Companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form from April 1, 2019. In view of the above and
to avail various benefits of dematerialization, Members are advised to dematerialize shares held by
them in physical form.

Members holding shares in physical form; under single name are advised to make nomination in
respect of their shareholding in the Company. The Nomination Form SH-13 prescribed by the
Government can be obtained from the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. Further, Members desirous
of cancelling/varying nomination are requested to send their requests in Form No. SH-14, to Purva
Sharerigstry. These forms will be made available on requesL

In case of joint holders attending the Annual General Meeting, the Member whose name appears as the
first holder in the order of names as per The Register of Members of the company will be entitled to
vote at the AGM.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory statement shall be open for
inspectionatthe RegisteredOfficeofl the Company during normal business hours (10:00 AM. to 5:00
P.M.) on all working days except 5aturdays, Sundays and Holidays, up to and including the date of the
32nd AGM of the Company.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed
thereunder, as amended from time to time and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; the Members are provided with the facility to cast their
vote electronically, through the e-voting services provided by PURVA on all the resolutions set forth in
this Notice. All Shareholders holding Shares as on 22™ September, 2025 being the cut-off date
|i.e.record date for the purpose of Rule 20(2)(ii) of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2015] fixed for determining voting rights of Members will be entitled to participate in E-voting
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process. The instructions for e-voting are given here in below. Resolution(s) passed by Members
through e-voting are deemed to have been passed as if they have been passed at the 32nd AGM.

The Board vide its Resolution passed on 30" July, 2025 had appointed Mr. Milind Jog and Accociates,
Practicing Company Secrelaries (Membership No. A15403 CP No. 27225) as the Scrutinizer for
conducting the remote E-voting and Ballot form process in accordance with the law and in a fair and
transparent manner.

The Chairmanshall, after the conclusion of the discussion(s) on the resolutions on which voting is to be
held at the 32™AGM, shallallow voting with the assistance of the scrutinizer.

Members participating at the AGM, who have not already cast their vote on the Resolutions through
remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, will be eligible to exercise their right to
vote during such proceedings of the AGM. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting
prior to the AGM may also attend /participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM, but shall not be entitled to
cast their vote again.

Members may contact Mrs Jinal Jain Company Secretary Cum Compliance Officer of the Company for
any grmvances connected with electronic means at the Registered office of the Company i.e. at 283-
287, meg_.z floor, Solaris-1, Saki Vihar Road, Andheri(E}, Mumbai-400072.

The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of the voting at the 32™ AGM, first count the votes cast at the
meeting and then unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting. In the presence of atleast two
witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make not later than 48 hours of the
conclusion of the 32™AGM as envisaged under Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015; a
consolidated Scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favour or against, ifany, to the Chairperson of
Company/Meeting in writing, who shall counter sign the same and declare the results of the voting
forth with. The results declared with the Scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the website of the
Company and will be uploaded on the BSE Limited.

Members who are holding shares in physical form or who have not registered their email address with
the Company /Depository or any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member
of the Company after the Notice has been sent electronically by the Company, and holds shares as on
the cut-off date ie., 22™ September 2025 such Member may obtain the User ID and password by
sending a requestat support@purvashare.com.

PROCESS AND MANNER FORMEMBERS OPTING FOR E- VOTING
The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under: -

The voting period begins at 9.00 a.m. on 26"September, 2025 and ends at 5.00 p.m. on 28"September,
2025. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 22™ September, 2025 cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by Purva for voting therealter.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voling [acility to its
shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' resolutions. However, it has been observed that the
participation by the public non-institutional shareholders /retail shareholders isata negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed
entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user [Ds
and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been
decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential,
through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat
account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby,
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notonly facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating
in e-voting process.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO /CFD/CMD/CIR/P /2020 /242 dated December 9, 2020 on
e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat
accountsinorderto access e-Volting facility.

Type of shareholders Login Method

Users who have opted for CD5L Easi / Easiest [acility, can login
through their existing user id and password. Option will be
made available to reach e-Voting page without any [urther
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest
archttps://web.cdslindia.com /myeasi/home/login or visit
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New
System Myeasi.

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
Demat mode with CDSL

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see
the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is
in progress as per the information provided by company. On
clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting
page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers
i.e. CDSL/NSDL/PURVA, so that the user can visit the e-Voting
service providers' website directly.

[f the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/
Easi Registration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting
link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system
will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile
& Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option
where the e-Voting is in progress and also able to direetly access
the system ol all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Sharehaldars If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit
holding securities in the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing
demat mode with NSDL the following URL: https://eservicesnsdlcom either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Servicesis launched, click on the "Beneficial Owner” icon under
"Login" which is available under "IDeAS" section. A new screen
will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password.
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting
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Type of shareholders Login Method

services. Click on "Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-
directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voling period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select
"Register Online for [DeAS "Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb /ldeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing
the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is
available under 'Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (iLe. your sixteen
digit demal account number hold with NSDL), Password /OTP
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name ore-
Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-
Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting

Individual Shareholders You can also login using the login credentials of your demat
(holding securities in demat account through your Depository Participant registered with
mode) login through their NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will
Depository Participants be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option,

you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget
User 1D and Forget Password opltion available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issuesrelated to login through Depositoryi.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Members facing any technical issue in login can
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk evoting@ecdslindia.comor contact at 022-
23058738and 22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with CDSL

Individual Shareholders holding Members [acing any technical issue in login can

securities in Demat mode with NSDL contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020
990and 1800224430

Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than individual
shareholders holding in Demat form & physical shareholders.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website https: / /evoting. purvashare.com.
Click on "Shareholder /Member” module.

Now, Enter your User ID.\

For CD5SL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,

For NSDL: 8 Character DPID followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,

Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.comor
www.evoling.nsdl.comand voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is
to be used.

PAN ForMembers holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as
physicalshareholders)

Members who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the the
sequence number in their PAN Field sent by RTA or contact RTA

Dividend Bank Details Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy
OR Date of Birth [DOB) format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company
records inorder tologin,

Il both the details are not recorded with the depository or
company, please enter the member id / folio number in the
Dividend Bank details field as mentioned above.
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After entering these details appropriately, clickon "SUBMIT" tab.
Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Companys election screen.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVENT NO. for the relevant Kaiser Corporation Limited on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option
“"YES/NO/ABSTAIN" for voting. Select the option YES or NO or ABSTAIN as desired. The option YES
implies that you assent to the Resolution, option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution and
option ABSTAIN implies that you are not voting either for or against the Resolution.

Click on the "NOTICE FILE LINK" if you wish to view the Notice.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box will
bedisplayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on "CANCEL"
and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you "CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
Facility for Non - Individual Shareheldersand Custodians - Remote Voting

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUE NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to
log on to https://evoting.purvashare.com and register themselves in the "Custodians / Mutual Fund”
module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
evoting@purvashare.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour
of the Custodian, ifany, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the
same.

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz;
compliancekaiser@gmail.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the Purva
e-voling system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/EGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-
VOTING DURING MEETING ARE ASUNDER:

The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/ EGM is the same as the
instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voling.

The link for VC/OAVM to attend the meeting will be available where the EVENT NO. of Company will be
displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting.

Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However,
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM /EGM.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / 1Pads for better experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a pood speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It
is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid
plitches.
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Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register
themselves as a speaker by sending their request oncompliancekaiser@gmail.com by ZE”Septemhen
2025 mentioning their name, demat account number /folio number, email id, mobile number. The
shareholders who do not wish to speak ::lurm;1 the AGM but have queries may send their queries on
compliancekaiser@gmail.com by 22"September mentioning their name, demat account
number/folio number, email id, mobile number. These queries will be replied to by the company
suitably by email.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their
views /ask questions during the meeting,

Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Volting and are otherwise not barred from doing
s0, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the EGM /AGM.

If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the EGM /AGM and if the
same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast
by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is
available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOTREGISTERED
WITH THE COMPANY /DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy ol PAN
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company /RTA email id.

2. For Demat sharcholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP)

3. ForIndividual Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through
Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the Purva e-Voling System,

you canwrite an email to evoling@purvashare.com or contactat 022-49614132and 022-49700138.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Ms.
Deepali Dhuri,Compliance Officer, Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited, Unit No. 9, Shiv Shakti
Industrial Estate, |. R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400011 or send an email to
evoling@purvashare.comorcontactat022-022-49614132and 022-49700138.

Other Instructions:

The e-voting period commences only at 9.00 am.on 26" September, 2025 and ends at 5.00 p.m. on
28" September 2025. During this period, members of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on 22" September, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. Once the
vote on a resolution is cast by the shareholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently.

The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of
the Company as on the cut-off date 22™September, 2025.

Mr. Milind Jog Practicing Company Secretary has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-
voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall, within a period not exceeding two working days from the conclusion of the e-
voting period, unblock the votes in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the
Company and make a Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in f[avour or against, if any, forthwith to the
Chairperson of the Company.
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A member can opt for only one mode of voling ie. either through e-voting or by BalloL If a member
casts votes by both modes, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail and Ballot shall be treated as
invalid.

By order of the Board

For KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED
Bhushanlal Arora
Managing Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16™ August, 2025

REGISTERED OFFICE:
UnitNo.283-287,"F" Wing,

2™ Floor, Solaris-1,

Saki Vihar Road, Andheri (East],
Mumbai - 400072
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Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of The Companies Act, 2013
SPECIAL BUSINESS :

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”), and the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the "SEBI Listing
Regulations”), the following Explanatory Statement sets out all material facts relating to the
businesses mentioned under ltems 3 and 4 of the accompanying Notice dated 16th August 2025.

Item No. 3

Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of
the Company ("Board") at its meeting held on July 30, 2025 had appointed Mr. Gitesh Nimkar ([DIN:

02342111) as Additional Directors(Non-Executive, Independent director) of the Company for a first
term of Five (5) years not liable to retire by rotation, subject to approval of the shareholders of the

Company.

Further, in terms of the amended Regulation 17(1C) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, effective from
January 01, 2022, a listedentity shall ensure that the approval of shareholders for appointment of a
person on the Board of Directors has to be taken either at the next general meeting or within a time
period of three months from the date of appointment, whichever is earlier.

Accordingly, approval of the shareholders is sought to comply with the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Company has received from Mr. Gitesh Nimkar (DIN: 02342111) (i) consents in writing to act as
Directors in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, (ii) intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect thathe is notdisgualified under Section164(2) of the Actand (iii) a
declaration to the effect that he meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the
Actand under SEBI Listing Regulations and not holding Equity shares of the Company.

The Company has also received a Notice under Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing
candidature of Mr. Gitesh Nimkar (DIN:02342111) for the office of Directors of the Company. Brief
profile of Mr. Gitesh Nimkar isasunder:

Mr. Gitesh Nimkaris qualified as commerce graduate and has vast experience & knowledge in the field
ofAccounts and Software. He isbased in Mumbai

The terms and conditions for appointment of Mr. Gitesh Nimkar as Independent Directors of the
Company shall be open for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during
normal business hours on any working day.

Other details of Mr. Gitesh Nimkar are provided in annexure to the Notice pursuant to the provision of
SEBI Listing Regulations and the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings{"55-2"), issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

The Board recommends passing of the Special Resolutions as set out in Items no. 3 of this Notice, for
approval by the Members of the Company.

None of the Directors or key managerial personnel or their relatives are, in anyway, concerned or
interested in the said resolution, as set outin the Items No. 2 ofthis Notice.

Item No. 4

Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of
the Company ("Board”) at its meeting held on July 30, 2025 had appointed Mrs. Hufrish Variava
(DIN:11219649) as Additional Directors [Non-Executive, Independent director) ol the Company fora
first term of Five (5) years not liable to retire by rotation, subject to approval of the shareholders of the
Company.
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Further, in terms of the amended Regulation 17(1C) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, effective from
January 01, 2022, a listed entity shall ensure that the approval of shareholders for appointment of a
person on the Board of Directors has to be taken either at the next general meeting or within a time
period of three months from the date of appointment, whichever is earlier.

Accordingly, approval of the shareholders is sought to comply with the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Company has received from Mrs. Hufrish Variava (DIN:11219649) (i) consents in writing to actas
Directors in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, (ii) intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect that he is notdisqualified under Section164(2) ofthe Actand (iii) a
declaration to the effect thathe meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) ofthe
Actand under SEBI Listing Regulations and notholding of equity shares of the Company.

The Company has also received a Notice under Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing
candidature of Mrs. Hulrish Variava (DIN:11219649) for the office of Directors of the Company. Brief
profile of Mrs. Hufrish Variavaisas under:

Mrs. Hufrish Variava is qualified as commerce graduate and has vast experience & knowledge in the
field of Accounts and administration. Sheis based in Mumbai.

The terms and conditions for appointment of Mrs. Hufrish Variava as Independent Directors of the
Company shall be open for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during
normal business hours on any working day.

Other details of Mrs. Hufrish Variava is provided inannexure to the Notice pursuant to the provision of
SEBI Listing Regulations and the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings("S5-2"), issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

The Board recommends passing ol the Special Resolutions as set out in Items no. 4 of this Notice, for
approval by the Members of the Company.

None of the Directors or key managerial personnel or their relatives are, in anyway, concerned or
interested in the saidresolution, assetoutin the ltems No. 4 of this Notice.

By order of the Board
For KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED

Bhushanlal Arora
Managing Director

Place : Mumbai

Date : 16" August, 2025
REGISTERED OFFICE :
Unit No 283-287 F wing ,

2nd Moor, Solaris ,-1 Saki Vihar Road,
Andheri (E), Mumbai-400 072
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Details of the Directors seeking Appointment/Reappointment at the Annual General Meeting

as per the Listing Agreement

Details of Directors seeking appointment and re-appointment at the forthcoming Extra Ordinary
General Meeting [Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings|

NAME Mr. Gitesh Nimkar Mrs. Hulfrish Variava Mr . Bhushanlal Arora
Date of Birth 24.09.1977 23.06.1974 05.11.1953

Date of Appointment | 30.07.2025 30.07.2025 27th September 2024
Qualification B.com B.com B.com Inter CA

Brief Profile

M= Gitesh Nimbar,

is qualified as Commerce.

Graduate and has vast
experience & amp;
knowledge in the field,
ol accounts & software.

Mr=. Hulrish Variava, Aged

in 51 yrs., is a Graduate in
Commerce. She has worked
as an Acroontant in the brust
office for around 18 years. She
has been working as
Accountant and Advertising
Administrator in Parsiana
Publications Private Limited
since 2021

Mr. Bhushanlal Arora,
Managing Director, Aged 72,
is a Graduate in Commerce
and has gualified C A.
Intermediate in 1976,

He has worked asa
Financial Manager of
Parsiama Publications
Private Limited during
1983-1993. He has been
associated with printing
industry for more than

42 years.

Directorship held in
other companies

Kaiser-E-Hind Private Limited
Parsiana Publications
Private Limited

Membership of

commitiees

ACTOSS COmpanies - - -

Shares held Nil Mil Mil

Relationship Between | There is no relationship | There is no relationship with There is no relationship
the Directors with other Directors. other Directors. with other Directors.
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT

To

The Members

Kaiser Corporation Limited
Mumbai

Your Directors’ are pleased to present the Thirty Second Annual Report of your Company with the
Consolidated Audited Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025.

FINANCIAL RESULTS : {AMOUNT IN LAKHS)
Particulars 31 March 2025| 31 March 2024
Sales Income 197998 2557.50
Other income 193.81 3476
Total Income 2173.80 2592.26
Expenditure:
Finance costs 189.93 164.45
Depreciation and amortization expenses 15.77 17.31
Profit before non-controlling interests/
share in net profit/[loss) of associate (239.321) 59.86
Share of profit/(loss) of associate 0.00 0.00
Profit/(loss) before tax (239.31) 59.86
Current tax 1.06 20.34
Current tax{MAT) 0 0
MAT credit entitlement 0 0
Deferred tax charge (33.35) (3.62)
Tax adjustment of earlier years (9.91) (21.20)
Mat credit (0.33) 8.60
Profit/(loss)after tax [A] (196.77) 55.73
Other comprehensive income/(loss)for the year. (9.11) (4.75)
Total comprehensive income/{loss)lor the year{A+B) (205.89) 50.98
Total comprehensive income /{loss)attributable to:
Owners of the Parent (112.18) 29.58
Non-controlling interests (93.71) 21.40
Of the Total Comprehensive income /{loss) included
above, Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Parent (107.14) 32.21
Non-controlling interests (89.63) 252
Of the Total Comprehensive income /(loss) included above,
Other comprehensive income /{loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Parent (5.04) 2.62
Non-controlling interests (4.08) 212
Earnings per equity share: (no annualised)
Basic and diluted (in Rs.) (0.204) 0.06
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CONSOLIDATED :

Your Company's consolidated total income was to the tune of Rs. 2173.80 lakhs compared to the
consolidated income of Rs. 2592.26 lakhs for the previous year with the net loss of Rs. 196.77 lakhs
compared to the net Profit of Rs. 55.73 lakhs for the previous year. The Turnover has reduced as
compared to the previous year resulting ino the loss of Rs. 196.77 lacks on account of overall reduction
in the business activities, coupled with the increase in the overhead epenses, however your Directors
are confident that the company will be able to generate higher turnover and will be able to generate the
Profitability in the current year Your Directors are taking corrective steps to increase the business
activities with the control over the expenses and trying to increase its products in the current year.

During the year, Kaiser continued to strengthen its position with increased business activities. In a
challenging operating environment, your Company reported a resilient performance.

STANDALONE:

The standalone total income was to the tune of Rs. 73.25 lakhs compared to the standalone income of
Rs.62.62 lakhs for the previous year which has been increased marginally.

Your company with its subsidiary is presently in the business of Compounding for Trunkey project
management, engineering services and printing of labels, packaging materials, Magazines and articles
of stationery. Your Directors are taking various steps and has been looking after other lucrative
business opportunities.

DIVIDEND

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2025.

STATE OF AFFAIRS

There has been no change in the business of the Company during the financial year ended March 31,
2025

RESERVES

The net movementin the reserves of the Company lor FY25 and the previous year are as follows:

(Rs. In lakh)
Particulars FY25 FY2Z4
Capital Reserve 14.03 14.03
Security Premium 7.01 7.01
Retained Earnings (62.20) [6B.29)

No amount was transferred to General Reserves.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company had only one Subsidiary as on 31 March 2025 and there has been no material change in
the nature of the business of the subsidiary. There are no associates or joint venture companies within
the meaning of Section 2(6) of The Companies Act, 2013 (Act).

The consolidated financial statements ol the company and its subsidiary are prepared in accordance
with the accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, forms part of
the Annual Report and are reflected in the consolidated financial statements ol the company.
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Pursuant to the provisions ol Section 136 of the Act, the financial statements of the company,
consolidated financial statements along with relevant documents and separate audited accounts in
respect ofits Subsidiary is available on the website of the company.

The annual accounts of its Subsidiary and related detailed information will be kept at the registered
office of the company, as also at the registered office of the respective subsidiary company and will be
available to Investors seeking information atany time.

Areporton the performance and financial position of the subsidiary in AOC-1 is annexed to the report
under Rule 8 of The Companies {Accounts) Rules 2014 as per annexure L.

TRAINING AND HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Morale of our professionals continued to be high. The Company continues to put concerted efforts in
recruiting quality people. Development and training programs are undertaken were key focus is being
given to areas being employee development, growth and satisfaction along with employee relations
during the year. The relationship between management and employees continues to be one of mutual
respect, appreciation and cordial.

POLICY ON DIRECTORSAPPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

In terms of the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Act, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) is responsible for formulating the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and
independence of a Director. In line with this requirement, the Board has adopted the terms and
conditions of appointment of Independent Director and Code ol conduct for board members and
senior management.

DIRECTORS

As per the provisions of Section 152 of The Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Bhushanlal Desraj Arora retires by
rotation and being eligible for appointment offers himself for re-appointment.

Mr. Vipul Dave (DIN: 01189358) was appointed as an Additional Independent Director with effect
from 13" February, 2025 but has resigned from the Board with effect from 7" May 2025.The Board
placesonrecord its appreciation for his contribution to the company during his tenure as the Director
ofthe company.

The Company has appointed Mr. Gitesh Nimkar ( DIN no 02342111) as an Independend Director with
effect from 30 July, 2025. His appointment will be approved at the ensuring 32nd Annual General
Meeting by the shareholders of the Company.

The Company has appointed Mrs. Hufrish Variava (DIN:11219649) as an Independend Director with
effect from July 30, 2025. Her appointment will be approved at the ensuring 32nd Annual General
Meeting by the shareholders of the Company.

All other Independent Directors ol the Company comply with the requirements as stated in the
Companies Act, 2013 in regard to theirappointment.
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COMPANY SECRETARY :

Mrs. Jinal Patani (Membership no: A 63564) has resigned as Company Secretary and Compliance
Officer of the Company with effect [rom g April 2025. Ms. Jinal Jain (Membership no: A59185) was
appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from 7" April
2025.

BOARDMEETINGSAND COMMITTEEMEETINGS :

1.  Seven (7) Board meetings were held during the year. The details of the Board meetings and the
attendance of the Directors are provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

2. Four (4) Audit Committee meetings were held during the year The details of the Audit
Committee meetings and the attendance of the Directors are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report.

3.  One (1) Nominationand Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the year. The details
ofthe Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting and the attendance of the Directors are
provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

4.  Four (4) Stakeholder Relationship Committee meetings were held during the year. The details of
the Stakeholder Relationship Committee meetings and the attendance of the Directors are
provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

5.  Aseparate meeting of the Independent Directors was also held on 18th January, 2025

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE AND PERFORMANCE OF ITS COMMITTEES
AND OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Pursuantto the provisions of the Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 the Board of Directors
has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board committees and individual
Directors.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directorson
the basis of criteria such as the board composition and structure effectiveness of Board process,
participation in the long-term strategic planning, information, functioning etc.

The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the
Committee members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness
of Committee meetings, etc.

The Board reviewed the performance of the Individual Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the

contribution of the Individual Director to the Board and committee meetings, preparedness on the

issues to be discussed, meaning full and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. In

addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects ofhis role by other Board members.

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was convened 18" January 2024 to discuss the following

aspects:

i  Reviewthe performance ol Non-Independent Directors and the Board asawhole;

ii. Review the performance ol the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors;

ii.  Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company's
Managementand the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform
their duties.
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All Independent Directors were present at the Meeting and discussed the above and expressed their
satisfaction.

COMPLIANCE WITHSECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretariesof India on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The company has received necessary declaration from each of the Independent Directors, under
Section 149(7) of The Companies Act,2013 and that he /she meets the criteria of Independence laid
down in Section149(6) of The Companies Act, 2013 and as per Regulation 16 of SEBI Listing
Regulations.

There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as independent directors of the
Company.

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees, commission and
reimbursement of expenses, ifany

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUD

The Auditor's Reportdoesn't contain any information in relation to fraud.

BOARDS COMMENT ONTHEAUDITORS' REPORT
The observations of the Statutory Auditors, when read together with the relevant notes to the accounts
and accounting policies are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comment.

MATERIALCHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There have been no material changes and commitments, which affect the [inancial position of the
company which have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the linancial statements
relate and the date of this Report.

QUALITY INITIATIVES

The Company continues to strengthen its commitment to the highest levels of quality, superior
customer experience, best-in-class service management, robust information security and privacy
practices and mature business continuity management.

The relevance of Kaiser " integrated Quality Management System (iQM5™) is continually evaluated for
new service offerings, emerging delivery methodologies, industry best practices and latest
technologies, and adequately upgraded to provide outstanding value and experience to its customers.

DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no amount on account of
principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet.
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INTERNALCONTROLSYSTEMSAND THEIRADEQUACY

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity ol its
operations. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the
Chairman of Audit Committee of the Board and to the Chairman and Managing Director.

The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control
system in the Company, its compliance with the operating systems, accounting procedures and
policies. Based on the report of Internal Audit function, process owner undertake corrective actions in
their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and
recommendations along with corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the
Board.

INTERNAL FINANCIALCONTROL

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference te financial statements.
During the year, such controls were tested and the auditor has not identified any material weakness
relating to inancial reporting.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

The particulars required to be stated as per the provisions of Section134 (3) (m) of The Companies Act,
2013 relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption do notapply to your Company.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGSAND OUT GO
Foreign Exchange Earnings : NIL
Foreign Exchange Outge : NIL

DEPOSITORY SYSTEM
Details of the Depository System are given in the Corporate Governance Report and is attached with the

Annual Accounts.

AUDITORS

The Auditors M/S Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP (Firm Registration Mo. 109420W) Chartered
Accountants has been appointed at the 28" Annual General Meeting of the company held on 30"
September 2021 for the period of five years.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT MATERIALORDERS
No significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or the courts or tribunals that may
have an impact on the going concern status and Company's operations in foreseeable future.

ANNUALRETURN
The Annual Return for FY 2025 is available on the website of the Company at
https: //www.kaiserpress.com/cms /3 /Investor-Relation
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DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, work performed by the Internal, Statutory, and Secretarial Auditors and
External consultant(s) and their views performed by management and the relevant Board committees,
including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company's internal financial
controls were adequate and effective during the financial year 2024-25,
Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of their
knowledge and ability, confirm that:
{a)  In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;
(b) They have selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view ol the state of
affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the Company for that
period;

(c) They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) They have prepared the annual accounts on a "going concern basis”;

(e) They have laid down internal [inancial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

() They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

During the reporting period, your company has not granted any Loans but has given Corporate
Guarantee and has done investments as reflected in financial statement being the part of Annual
Report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions entered into during the financial year were on an arm's length basis, in
the ordinary course of business and were incompliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and
the Listing Apreement. The details of the transactions with related parties are provided in the
accompanying financial statements.

There were no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company during the year
that would have required members approval under Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements), 2015. The policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing
with related party transactions has been already approved by the Board.
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CORPORATESOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, company does come under the purview of
Corporate Social Responsibility

COSTRECORD
The provision of Cost audit as per section 148 does notapplicable on the Company.

VIGILMECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The company has adopted a Whistle blower Policy, to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors,
employees and its stakeholders to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. The policy provides for adequate
safeguards againstvictimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company has
been denied access to the Audit Committee.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AND REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 the Management
Discussion and Analysis and the Corporate Governance Report, is presented in a separate section
forming partofthe Annual Report.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013

The company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of women at Workplace (Prevention, prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. No
complaints pertaining to sexual harassment were received during E Y. 2024-25.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Company would like to acknowledge all its stakeholders, 5Bl and HDFC Bank and its customers,
key partners for their supportand all its employees for their dedication and hard work.

The Directors appreciate the continued guidance received from various Regulatory Authorities
including RBI, SEBI, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, The Registrar of Companies, The Stock Exchange,
Mumbai, Income Tax and GST Authorities.

On Behalfofthe Board of Directors
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Disclosure in form AOC-1 in terms of Section 129 of The Companies Act, 2013 is annexed

Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first Proviso to Sub Section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiary company
PART A
(AMT IN LAKHS)
Sr. No Particulars Details
1 Name of the subsidiary Xicon International Limited
V.4 Reporting period of the subsidiary Concerned
if different from holding Company's reporting
period 01.04.2024 10 31.03.2025
3 Share capital 309.16
4 Reserves & Surplus 345.34
5 Total Assets 3522.84
6 Total Liabilities 2868.35
7 Investment 1.19
B Turnover 1915.89
9 Prolits before Taxation (243.53)
10 | Provision for Taxation [43.25)
11 | Profit after Taxation (200.28)

12 | Proposed Dividend -
13 | % of shareholding 55.25%
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR 2024-2025
COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY

The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance is founded on its rich legacy of transparency,
accountability, fairness, integrity, detailed disclosures and professionalism. The Company [irmly
believes that sound Corporate Governance practices are key boosters of long-term value of
stakeholders and forms an integral part of its business. Corporate Governance is not just a destination
but has been a continuous journey for the Company in its pursuit to achieve sustainable value creation
for all stakeholders without compromising on integrity, societal obligations, environment and
regulatory compliances. The Company constantly endeavours to benchmark itself with the best
standards of Corporate Governance in letter, form and spirit. Corporate Governance initiatives are
implemented by the management with guidance and support from the Board. Effective leadership
together with good Corporate Governance practices have been the Company’s strength. These
principles have been and will continue to be our puiding force in future. This philosophy is reflected
and practiced through the Kaiser Code of Conduct, the Kaiser Business Excellence Model and the
Kaiser Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices.
Further, these codes allow the Board to make decisions that are independent of the management. The
Company is committed to focus its energies and resources in creating and positively leveraging
shareholders’ wealth and, at the same time, safeguarding the interests of all stakeholders. This is our
path to sustainable and profitable existence and growth. The Company has adopted Governance
Guidelines to cover aspects related to composition and role of the Board, Chairman and Directors,
Board diversity, Director's term, retirement age and committees of the Board. It also covers aspects
relating to nomination, appointment, induction of Directors, Director's remuneration, subsidiary
oversight and Board effectiveness review.

The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with
Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {Listing
Regulations), as amended [rom time to time and as applicable, with regard to Corporate Governance
including relaxations granted by the Ministry ol Corporate Affairs [MCA) and Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI) from time to time. Kaiser has always adhered to principles and values that align
with the ideas of our Promoters. At Kaiser we treasure our values and are committed to sustainable
growth. The key values of the Company's culture are SCALE (Safety, Care, Agility, Learning, Ethics). The
Company is committed to driving these values and strives to set the highest standards in governance
and business ethics.

As per Regulation 15 (2) of the Listing Regulation 2015; the compliance with the Corporate
Governance provisions as specified in regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21,22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and clauses
(b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) ol regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V shall not apply, in
respectof.

(a)  The listed entity having paidup Equity Share Capital not exceeding Rupees ten Crore and
networth not exceeding rupees twenty-five crore, as on the last day of the previous financial
year.

The Company's Authorized Share Capital as on 31st March, 2025 is Rs. 10 crores out of which the Paid-
up Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 5,26,21,020/- divided into 52,621,020 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/-
eachand the net worth is also less than Rupees 25 crores.

Inview ofthe provisions mentioned herein above these Regulations are not applicable to the Company.

But with an intention of applying good Corporate Governance practices in the affairs of the Company,
we have adopted every aspect of the Corporate Governance Norms in our business activities, as
mandated under the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.
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1.

CODE OF GOVERNANCE
The Company's povernance framework is based on the following principles:

« Appropriate composition and size of the Board, with all the Members bringing in expertise
in their respective domains;

» Awvailability of information to the Members of the Board and Board Committees to enable
themtodischarge their fiduciary duties;

« Timely disclosure of material, operational and financial information to the Stakeholders;
« Properbusiness conduct by the Board, Senior Management and employee
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is the focal point and custodian of corporate governance for the Company. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing
diversity at Board level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage. A truly
diverse Board will include and make pood use of differences in the skills, regional and industry
experience, background, gender and other distinctions between directors. These differences
will be considered in determining the optimum composition of the Beard and, when possible,
will be balanced appropriately.

The Beard of Directors ("Board”) is at the core of our corporate governance practice and
oversees and ensures that the Management serves and protects the long-term interest of all our
Stakeholders. The Board has a fiduciary relationship in ensuing that the rights of Stakeholders
are protected

Your Company's functions are governed by professional Directors under whose directions /
puidance the Company has Hourished so far in its activities. The Board of Directors of the
Company has a proper blend of Independent and Non-Independent Directors in line with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act') and the ('SEBI Listing Regulations') as
amended from time to time.

The Company has a strong and diverse Board of Directors, independence of management with
sufficient expertise to oversee corporate management on behall of the Company's
shareholders. The Board reviews and approves corporate strategies that are intended to build
sustainable long-term value. In making decisions, the Board considers the interests of all the
stakeholders of the Company such as employees, customers, suppliers and the community in
which the Company operates.

As on March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company consists of Four Directors of
which one Director is an Executive Direcltor designated as Managing Director and three
Directors are Non-Executive Independent Directors out of which one is a woman Director
which commensurate with the size of the Company, complexity and nature of various under
lying business activities. Mr. Vipul Dave, Independent Director has resigned with effect from 7th
May, 2025.

Board of Directors strictly follows the Company's Code of Conduct. The Board periodically
reviews compliancereportsofl all laws applicable to the Company as well as take step storectify
instance so fany non-compliance.

COMPOSITION OF THEBOARD

The Chairperson of the Board is an Executive Director. All the Independent Directors have
confirmed that they meet' Independence’ criteria as per Regulation 16 (1) (b) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations read with Section149(6)ofthe AcL.
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None of the Independent Directors of the Company are related to each other. The appointment of
Executive Director including the tenureand terms of remuneration has already been approved by the
members in the year 2021.

Meetings of the Board:
During Financial Year ("EY.") 2024- 2025
The Board met 7 times on the following dates :
30.05.2024
28.06.2024
10.07.2024
18.07.2024
13.08.2024
14.11.2024
13.02.2025
Name of Director 1
Mr. Bhushanlal Arora| P
P
P

NS m e W e

% of attendance
100%
100%
100%

== |~

Mr. Rajendra Vaze
Mrs. Anagha Korde

3
P
P
P

=N N N
| |w |n
=l |= |
=== |4

P

Mr. Vipul Dave* Notapplicable

Mr. Vipul Dave was appointed as Director w.e . 13 February 2025 and resigned w.e.[ 7th May 2025.
The maximum time gap between any two consecutive meetings did not exceed [four months.

The necessary quorum was present for all the Meetings. The notice and detailed agenda alongwith the
relevant notes and other material information are sent in advance separately to each Director and in
exceptional cases tabled at the Meeting with the approval of the Board.

L Scheduling and Selection o fAgenda ltems for Board Meetings:

All departments of the Company schedule their work plans inadvance, particularly with regard
to matters requiring consideration at the Board/Committee meetings. All such matters are
communicated to the Chairman in advance sothatthe same could be included in the Agenda for
the Board / Committee meetings.

1L Attendance and Directorships held :

Information about the Directors of the Company, their attendance at the 31stAnnual General
Meeting of the Company held on September 27, 2024and the Number of Directorships in other
Companies and Committee position in other Public Limited / Private Limited Companies as on
March 31, 2025; are detailed below :

26. KAISER CORPORATION LTD.



KAISER CORPORATION LTD.

THIRTY SECOND ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

Director | No.ofother | Relation-
Sr. Name of the Attendance | ship in Board ship
No. Director Date of at other |Committees |  with
Joining the | Category | the AGM | Indian in Directors
Board held Public which
on 27w | Limited | Chairman
September | Companies | / Member**
2024 -
Chairman
/ Member®
1. |Mr. Bhushanlal D. Arora 20/09/1993 Chairperson
& Attended|  NIL NIL | None
Managing
Director
2. |Mr. Rajendra R. Vaze |10/06/2008| Non-
Executive | Apended| NIL NIL None
Independent
Director
3. |Mrs. Anagha Korde |30/09/2015| Non-
Exccutive | apended | NIL NIL | None
Independent
Director
4. |Mr. Vipul Dave# 13/02/2025| Additional Not
Non- Applicable]  NIL NIL None
Executive
Independent
Director

* Excludes Directorships in Indian Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Companies
under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013

**Represents memberships / chairmanships of Audit Committee & Stakeholders Relationship
Committee.

#Mr. Vipul Dave resigned from the Board of the Company w.e.f. 7th May 2025.

1. Chairmanship/MembershipofCommittee includes Audit Committee and Stakeholders

'Relationships Committee of Indian Public Limited Companies excluding Kaiser Corporation
Limited.

2. Allthe Directors of the Company comply with the requirements of the Directorship as stipulated
under Regulation 17A and Regulation 26 (1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligation Disclosure Requirement)Regulation, 2015. The Directors have made necessary
disclosures regarding their Directorship / committee position to the Company.

NUMBER OF SHARES HELD BY NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Rajendra Vaze holds 10000 Equity Shares and Mrs. Anagha Korde holds 5000 Equity Shares
and Mr. Vipul Dave does not hold any Equity shares of the Company as on March 31, 2025. The

Company has not issued any convertible instruments during the financial year ended March 31,
2025.
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IV. SEPARATEMEETINGOFINDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

During the year 2024-25, as per the requirements of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015; a separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 18
January, 2025 without the presence of the Non - Independent Directors and the Members of the
Management. The Meeling was conducted in an in formal manner to enable the Independent
Directors to discuss and review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company and for

assessing the quality, quantity and time liness of flow of information between the Company's
Managementand the Board.

COMMITTEES OF BOARD

The Company has 3 (Three) Board Level Committees to focus on critical functions of the
Company and also for smooth and efficient business operations. viz. Audit Committee,
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders' Relationship Committee. The
Committees meet at regular intervals for deciding various matters and providing directions and
authorizations to the management for its implementation. Minutes of the proceedings of each
commitiee meeting is circulated to the members of that Committee for their comments and
thereafter, confirmed and signed by the Chairman of the respective Committee. The Board also
takes note of minutes of the meetings of the Committees duly approved by their respective
Chairman and the material recommendations / decisions of the Committees are placed before

the Board for approval / information. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to these
Committees.

Details on role and composition of these Committees, including number of meetings held during
FY 2024-25 and the related attendance are provided below:

Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013; read with Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. The Audit
Committee invites such of the Executives, as it considers appropriate, representatives of the
Statutory Auditors to attend the meeting.

During FY 2024-25, the Audit Committee met 4 times, on 30.05.2024, 13.08.2024, 14.11.2024,
and 13.02.2025. The requisite quorum was present at all the meetings. The Chairman of the
Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September
27,2024.

Sr. | Name of Director Position | Category No. of Audit Committee
No. Meetings attended
1 Mrs. Anapgha Korde Member |Non-Executive 4putof4
Independent Director
Mr. Bhushanlal Arora| Chairman | Managing Director 4outol4
Mr. Rajendra Vaze Member | Non-Executive

Independent Director | 4outof4

The Audit Committee of the Company is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the Company's
internal controls and financial reporting process and interalia, performs the following functions:

d.

Overview of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its Financial
Information to ensure that the financial statements reflect a true and fair position and that
sulficientand credible information are disclosed;

Recommending the appointment and removal of external auditors, lixation of audit fee and also
approval for paymentforany other services;
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C.

- -

o p g - F

P

Discussion with the external auditors before the audit commences, of the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion toascertain any area of concern;

Reviewing the financial statements and draft audit report, including the quarterly /half yearly
financial information;

Reviewing with the management the annual financial statements before submission to the
Board, focusing primarily on;

Any changes inaccounting policies and practices;

Majoraccounting entries based on exercise of judgment by management;

Qualifications in Draft Audit Report;

Significant adjustments arising out of audit;

The going concernassumption;

Compliance with Accounting Standards;

Compliance with Stock Exchange and legal requirements concerning Financial Statements;
Any Related Party Transactions as per Accounting Standard18;

Reviewing the Company's [inancial and Risk Management Policies;

Disclosure of Contingent Liabilities;

Reviewing with the management External and Internal auditors, and the adequacy of Internal
Control Systems;

Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in payments to the Depositors, Debenture
Holders, Shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.
Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC"):

The NRC of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013; read with Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. The terms

of reference of the NRC includes various matters in conformity with the statutory guidelines
including the following:

To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director;

To formulate criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of
Directors;

The remuneration/compensation/commission etc. to Directors will be determined by the
Committee and shall be recommended to the Board for approval;

Recommend to the Board a policy [or selection and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial
Personneland other Senior Management positions;

Formulate and review criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors;
Succession planning for replacing Key Executives and overseeing;

Such other matters as the Board may [rom time to time request the Remuneration Committee to
examine and recommend/approve and for enforced by any statutory notification, amendment
or modification, as may beapplicable.

During Financial Year 2024-25 the NRC met one time on 13.02.2025.The requisite quorum was
present at the meeting. The Chairman of the NRC was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on September 27,2024
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Sr. Name of Z i No. of NRC
Position Catego =
No. Director 24 Meetings
attended
1. | Mr. Rajendra R. Vaze | Chairman Non-Executive loutofl

Independent Director

Non-Executive
2. | Mrs. Anagha Korde Member Independent Director 1outofl

3. | Mr. Bhushanalal Arora| Member Managing Director 1outofl

Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors:

The Performance Evaluation criteria for Independent Directors are determined by the NRC. An
indicative list of factors that may be evaluated include participation and contribution by a
Director, commitment, effective deployment of knowledge and expertise, effective
management of relationship with stakeholders, integrity and maintenance of confidentiality
and independence of behavior and judgment.

C. Stake holders Relationship Committee ("SRC"):

The SRC of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 178(2) of the
Companies Act, 2013; read with Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

The terms of reference of the SRC, inter-alia, includes the following:

a. The Shareholders Relationship Committee of the Board is empowered to oversee the
redressal of Investors Complaint(s), Share transfers, Non-Receipt of Annual Report,
Dividend payment, Issue of Duplicate Certificate, Transmission (with and without legal
representation) of Shares and other miscellaneous complaints;

b. Reviewing of Investors Complaints and take necessary steps for redressal thereol;

C. To perform all functions relating to the interest of the stakeholders of the Company as
may be required by the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there
under.

During Financial Year 2024-25, the SRC met 4 times on 19 April 2024, 22 July 2024, 14 October
2024 and 17 January 2025. The requisite quorum was present at all the meetings. The
Chairman of the SRC was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on

September27,2024
Sr. No.
No.| Name of Position Category of SRC
Director Meetings
Attended
1. | Mr. Rajendra Vaze | Chairman | Non- 4 oulof 4
Executive Independent
Director
2. | Mrs. Anagha Korde| Member | Non- 4 putol 4
Executive Independent
Director
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Contact details of the Compliance Officer / Company Secretary

Mrs Jinal Jain Address: Unit No 283 -287, | E-mail:

Company “F” Wing,2nd Floor, Solaris -, | compliancekaiser@gmail
Secretary Cum Saki Vihar Road, Andheri com

Compliance Officer | (East), Mumbai 400072

Ms Jinal Jain was appointed as the Company Secretary Cum Compliance Officer of the company w.e.L.
7th April 2025.

All grievances received from the shareholders of the Company are being redressed expeditiously and
satisfactorily at utmost priority, by the Secretarial Departmentand the RTA of the Company.

Details of Shareholders’ Complaints Received, Solved and Pendingduring FY 2024-25

Numberol complaints received so lar NIL
Number of complaints solved to the satisfaction of Shareholders NIL
Number of pending complainls NIL

. | SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
The Company has one Non Listed Subsidiary company:
1. Xicon International Limited

From time to time the various significant issues pertaining to the Subsidiary Company are
discussed at the Board meetings. The Audit committee also reviews the financial statements,
and other financial transactions of the subsidiary Company.

5. GENERAL BODY MEETING
The details of the Shareholder’s Meeting(s) held during the preceding 3 Financial Years:

Sr.
No. | pyEeof oate | Location Details of Special Resolution
& passed
1. | 3= Friday 27 Video - Appointment of Managing
Annual | September, Conferencing Director
General | 2024 at
Meeting | 11.00a.m.
2. | 3p™ Friday 15% Video NA
Annual | September,2 | Conferencing
General |023at
Meeting 11.00 a.m.
3. | 29" Friday 30t Video NA
Annual | September, Conferencing
General 2022 at
Meeting 11.00 a.m.
6. BALLOT
L During the year no postal Ballot was conducted
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7.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
The quarterly / half yearly and annual | Published in National English newspaper as
results of the Company well as newspaper published in vernacular
language of the region where the

Registered Office of the Company is
situated, viz : Free Press Journal in English
and Navshakti in Marathi in Mumbai

All the Shareholders’ information Such information is made available on the
Company’s website at
www.kaiserpress.com

Where in there is a separate dedicated
Section named as 'Investor Relations’

The Quarterly Results, Shareholdin Filed electronically with BSE through BSE
Pattern, Quarterly Compliances and all Listing C & al biced on th bsit
other Corporate communication during | 4SUng Lentre & also placed on the website
the year ended March31, 2025 - | of the Company at www.kaiserpress.com
All material information including The Company has promptly reported to the
declaration of Financial Results; Press Stock Exchange(s) where Shares of the
Releases, Presentations made to Company are listed, viz.BSE Limited
Institutional Analyst or Investors etc. ("BSE").

Such information is also simultaneously
displayed on the Company’swebsite at

www. kaiserpress.com

Certainrights thata shareholder in the Company enjoys:

Totransfer the shares.
To receive the Share Certificates upon transfer with in the stipulated period prescribed in the Act.

To receive Notice of General Meetings. Annual Report, the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss
Accountand the Auditor's Report.

Toappoint proxy to attend and vote at the General Meetings.
Toattend and speak in person, at General Meetings.

To vote atthe General Meeting on show ol hands wherein every shareholder has one vote. In case

of vote on pell, the number of votes of a shareholder is proportionate to the number of Equity
Shares held by him.

To demand pell along with other Shareholder(s) who collectively holding shares on which an
aggregate sum of not less than five lakh rupees or are not less than 1/10th of the total voting
power in respectofany resolution.

To requisite an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company by shareholders who collectively
hold notless than 1/10th of the total paid-up capital of the Company.

To moveamendments to resolutions proposed at Meetings.

To receive Dividend and other Corporate benefits like Rights, Bonus Shares etc. as and when
declared fannounced.

Toinspectvarious Registers of the Company.
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* To inspect the Minute Books of General Meetings & to receive copies thereofafter complying with
the procedure prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

* To appoint or remove Director(s) and Auditor(s) and thus participate in the management
through them.

. To proceed against the Company by way of Civil or Criminal Proceedings.
. Toapply for the Winding-up of the Company.
* Toreceive the residual proceeds upon Winding-up ofthe Company.

GENERALSHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
a) Annual General Meeting ("TAGM™) for the Financial Year 2024-25:

Day and Date Monday, 29" September 2025
Time 11.00am

Financial Year April to March

Board Meeting for consideration of accounts 30" May 2025

Dividend Rate N.A.

Dividend Payment Date N.A.

Book Closure Dates 23" September 2025 to

29" September 2025 both days inclusive

Last date for receipt of proxy forms NIL

Financial results for the quarter ending

and Year ending

June 2025 18" July 2024
September 2024 14" November 2024
December 2024 13" February 2025
Financial Year ended 31*March 2025 30" May 2025

a) Stock Exchanges where the securities of the Company are listed:

Name of the Stock Exchange Scrip Code
BSE Limited

Address: Phiroze |Jeejeebhoy Towers,

Dalal Street, Mumbai -400 001. 231780

Annual Listing Fees for the FY2024-25 has been paid to the BSE Limited.
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Names of Depositories in India for dematerialization of Equity Shares - ISINNO.INE229G01022.

a)

b)

Sr. No Particulars

1. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) ISIN No. INE229G01022
2 Central Depositories Services (India) Limited (CDSL) ISIN No. INE229G01022

Market price data-monthly high-low of the closing price on the BSE during the period
fromApril 2024 to March 2025 is given below:

Month High Price Low Price
April2024 13.10 10.65
May 2024 11.36 9.74
June 2024 12.70 8.95
July2024 10.39 8.95
August 2024 10.10 8.38
September 2024 9.40 8.40
October 2024 8.95 6.80
November 2024 9.65 7.68
December 2024 8.20 5.99
January 2025 645 4.65
February 2025 6.10 427
March 2025 5.56 4.03

Registrartoan Issue and Share Transfer Agents :

For acknowledgment of transfer deeds and any other documents or for any
Grievances/Complaints, kindly contact at the following address:

Mr. Vinayak Karande

Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd.,

9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estate, | R Boricha Marg,
O N.M Joshi Marg, Near Lodha Excelus,
Lower Parel (E), Mumbai- 400011
TelNo.: 23018261 /23016761

E-mail : support@purvashare.com
ShareTransferSystem:

The Company’s Shares which are in Demat form are transferable through the depository
system. Shares in physical form are processed by the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents,
Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd., and approved by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
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of the Company or authorized officials of the Company. The Share transfers are processed
within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt of the transfer documents by Purva
Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Limited.

Further, as per the SEBI revised circular on the said matter Physical Shares cannot be
transferred after March 31, 2019 except in the case of Transmission. Thus, each and every
shareholder holing shares in Physical form are requested to Dematerialize their shares in order
to trade in the securities.

d) Details of Share holdingason March 31,2025:
L Distribution of Share holding:

Shareholding of Nominal MNo. of % of Total no.| Amount % to
of for the Total
Value Shareholders {in Rs.) Capital
Shareholders
1-100 1701 59.05 3360951 0.64
101 — 200 1899 5.58 294352 0.56
201 — 500 2379 12 BZ26162 1.57
501 —1000 1419 7.16 1093641 208
1001 — 5000 1828 9.22 4301377 BAT
5001 — 10000 335 1.69 2538657| 4.82
10001 — 100000 235 1.19 6030342| 11.46
100001 and above 21 0.11 37199538| 70.69
Total 19817 100.00 | 52621020.00| 100.00

11. Shareholding Pattern ason March 31,2025

Number of | Percentage
Category of Shareholders = Hol dit:gg
Promoters and Promoter Group 31318570 59.52
Bodies Corporate 4168755 7.92
Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) 250 -
Banks and Financial Institutions = =
NRI Bodies Corporate 2105020 4.00
NRI(Non-Repat) 87910 0.17
NRI (Repat) 59438 0.11
Foreign Institutional Investor = =
HUF 381248 0.72
Others—- Resident Individuals 16602735 31.55
Others -Clearing Members 2114 -
L Directors Share Huldi_ng
Sr. No. Name of the Directors Number of Shares
held
1 Mr.Bhushanlal Arora Nil
Z Mr.Rajendra R. Vaze 10,000
3. Mrs. Anagha Korde 5,000
4. Mr.Vipul Dave Nil
TOTAL 15,000
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€]

g)

h)

10.

11.

Pledge of Shares:

No pledge has been created over the Equity Shares held by the Promoters and/or Promoter
Group Shareholders as on March31, 2025.

DematerializationofShares:

As on March31,2025; 51532830 Shares (approx.97.93%) of the total Equity Share Capital of
the Company are held in dematerialized form with National Securities Depository Limited and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited

Outstanding GDRS / ADRS f Warrants / Convertible Instruments as on March31,2025:

The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs / warrants or any other convertible
instrument(s).

Address for Correspondence:

Mrs. |inal Jain

Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer
Unitno.283-287,"F" Wing,

2nd Floor, Solaris-1, SakiVihar Road,
Mumbai-400072.

Email id. : kaisercorpltd@gmail.com
Website : www.kaiserpress.com

Corporate ldentity Number (CIN):

The Company is registered with The Registrar of Companies Mumbai, Maharashtra. The
Corporate ldentity Number (CIN) allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA)is L22210MH1993PLCO74035.

STATUS OF THE COMPLIANCE IN RESPECT OF NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

a. Chairperson of the Board : The Executive Chairperson does not maintain any separate
office for the Company.

b. Remuneration Committee : Details are given under the heading "Remuneration
Committee”.

C. Shareholder’s Right : Details are given under the heading "Means of communication”.

AUDIT QUALIFICATIONS

During the year under review, there was no qualification in the Auditor’s Report on the
Company’s [inancial statements.

RECONCILIATION AUDIT

Mr. Milind Jog (ACS No. 15403 CP No. 27225) Practicing Company Secretary have carried out
Reconciliation Audit to reconcile the total admitted Equity Share Capital with the National
Securities

Depository Limited

(NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the Total Issued and
Listed Equity Share Capital. The Reconciliation Audit Report confirms that the Total Issued/
Paid-Up Capital is in agreement with the total number of Shares in physical form and the total
number of Dematerialised Shares held with NSDLand CDSL.
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12.

13.

14.

15.

REQUEST TOSHARE HOLDERS

Shareholders are requested to follow the general procedure / steps as detailed hereunder thus
enabling the Company to serve them efficiently and avoid any risks while dealing in the
securities of the Company.

Demat of Shares:

Shareholders are requested to convert their physical holding to demat/electronic form through
any of the DPs to avoid any possibility of loss, mutilation etc., of physical share certificates and
also to ensure safe and speedy transaction in securities. Any investor who is desirous of
transferring shares (which are held in physical form) after April 01, 2019 can do so only after
the shares are dematerialized, except for transmission (i.e,, transfer of title of shares by way of
inheritance / succession) transposition (ie, re-arrangement / interchanging of the order of
name of shareholders) cases.

Consolidation of multiple folios:

Shareholders, who have multiple folios in identical names, are requested to apply for
consolidation ol such folios and send the relevant share certificates to the Company.

s Registration of Nominations:

Section 72 of the Act, 2013 provides [acility for making nominations by shareholders in
respect of their holding of shares. Such nomination greatly [acilitates transmission of
shares from the deceased shareholder to his / her nominee without having to go through
the process of obtaining succession certificate /probate of the Will, etc.

Itwould therefore be in the best interest of the shareholders holding shares in physical form
registered as a sole holder to make such nominations. Shareholders, who have not availed
nomination facility, are requested to avail the same by submitting the nomination in Form
SH-13.This form will be made available on request. Investors holding shares in demat form
are advised to contact their DPs for making nominations.

s Updationofaddress:

Shareholders are requested to update their addresses registered with the Company,
directly through the STA, to receive all communications promptly.

Shareholders, holding shares in electronic form, are requested to deal only with their DPsin
respect of change of address and furnishing bank account number, ete.

s SMSAlerts:

Shareholders are requested to note that NSDL and CDSL have announced the launch of SMS
alert facility for demat account holders whereby shareholders will receive alerts for debits
/ credits (transfers) to their demat accounts a day after the transaction. These alerts will be
sent to those account holders who have provided their mobile numbers to their Dps. No
charge will be levied by NSDL/CDSL on Dps providing this facility to investors. This [acility
will be available to investors who request for the same and provide their mobile numbers to
the DPs. Further information is available on the website of NSDL and CDSL namely
www.nsdLeo.in and www.edslindia.com respectively.

OTHERDISCLOSURE

» Materially Significant Related Party Transactions
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There are no transactions of material nature other than reported under "Related Party
Disclosures” that have been entered into by the Company with the Promoters, Directors,
their relatives and the Management and in any Company in which they are interested and
that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company.

All details relating to financial and commercial transactions where Directors may have a
pecuniary interest are provided to the Board and the interested Directors neither
participate in the discussion, nordo they vote on such matters.

The Company has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions. The
policy is available on the website of the Company at www.kaiserpress.com

« CodeofConductfor prevention of Insider Trading

The Company has duly adopted and have revised and updated Policy on Prevention of
Insider Trading as required by every Listed Company under Regulation9(1) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

All the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on March31,2025; along
with their immediate Relatives, have disclosed their Shareholding in the Company and their
acts are in compliance with the provisions of the said Code of the Company. The policy is
available on the website of the Company at www.kaiserpress.com.

+« PolicyonLeak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information

The Company had formulated and adopted Policies and Procedures for Inquiry in Case of
Leak of or Suspected Leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information under Regulation 9A
(5) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
(Amendment) Regulations,2018.

The Company endeavor to follow Good Corporate Governance Practices and thus take every
step to ensure that no unfair trade practices are carried on in the Company or by any
Personnel ol the Company.

Vigil Mechanism
The Company has a duly adopted Whistle Blower Policy and established a Vigil Mechanism in line with
the provisions of SEEI Listing Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013; which aims to provide a

mechanism to the employees and Directors of the Company to report instances of unethical behaviour,
actual or suspected [raud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy.

It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company have been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee during the Financial Year 2024-25.

Code of Conduct of the Company

All the Directors of the Company adhere to the Code of Conduct of the Company in true letter and spirit
and have given Declaration that they abide by the Code for the year ended March 31, 2024.The policy is
available on the website of the Company.

Compliance Status

As part of Good Corporate Governance practices all the compliance requirements as per sub-para (2)
to (10) of Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Repulations,2015; have been complied with by the
Company.
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Compliance Certificate

Mr. Milind Jog CP 27225 ACS No A15403 Practicing Company Secretary have certified that the

Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing
Regulation and the same forms partof this report.

By order of the Board
For KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED

Place : Mumbai

Date: 16" August 2025

Bhushanlal Arora

Managing Director
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M S JOG & Associates

COMPANY SECRETARIES

A-602, Avantika, Dattapada Cross Road No.2

Borivali (East), Mumbai - 400066

Email: milindjog@outlook.com; Mobile : +91 7021323049

To, Date : 30 th July, 2025
The Board of Directors

Kaiser Corporation Limited

U. No.283-287, ‘F' Wing, 2 nd Floor,

Solaris-l, Saki Vihar Road, Andheri (E),

Mumbai 400072

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Govemance by Kaiser
Corporation Limited having CIN: L22210MH1993PLC074035 and having Registered Office
at U. No.283-287, 'F Wing, 2 nd Floor, Solaris-l, Saki Vihar Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai
400072 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company’) for the financial year ended on March 31,
2025, as stipulated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 ('SEBI Listing Regulations’).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Govemance is the responsibility of the
Management. Our examination has been limited to a review of the procedures and
implementations thereof as adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said SEBI Listing Regulations.
It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, we certify that the Company has complied in all material respects with the conditions of
Corporate Govermnance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For M S Jog & Associates

Company Secretaries

Firm Unique Code S2024MH975900
Peer Review Certificate No.: 6118/2024

CS Milind Jog

(Proprietor)

Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice
Membership No. : A15403

CP No. : 27225

UDIN : A015403G000895801

Place : Mumbai
Date : 30/07/2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
GLOBAL ECONOMIC REVIEW

Global growth is projected to moderate at an estimated 3.1% in 2024 however it has come down to
2.8% world wide except India and it is lower than the historical annual average of 3.8%. The lower
growth in 2023 is due to the rising central bank rates to combat inflation and the war in Ukraine which
is still going on. Emerging market and developing economies are expected to recover in 2024 and 2025,
but considering the overall unrest going on in different parts of the world it looks very much difficult.
The growth rate for emerging market and developing economies is expected to increase marginally,
from 4.0%in 2023, to 4.2% in 2024. However, half of these economies will have a slower growth rate in
2024 compared to 2023. China's growth rate is estimated at 5.2% in 2023, while India's growth is
projected to decline, from 6.8% in 2022 to 6.1% in 2023, before rebounding to 6.8% in 2024, but as per
IMF the Indian Economy is going Lo be the fastest Economy in the world.

INDIA ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

India Economic Outlook India's economy recovered quickly from the pandemic and further growth is
expected to be supported by solid domestic demand and increase in capital investments. The
International Monetary Fund (IMF) and Reserve Bank of India (RBI) estimate real GDP growth of 6.8%
in 2022-23 and 6.1% in 2023-24 to 7.00% in 2025. The agriculture sector has been growing at an
average annual rate of 4.6% over the past six years, and the industrial sector is estimated to grow at
59% in FY 2024-25. Overall, the various budgetary allocations signal the Government's
determination toaccelerate economicgrowth and create amore prosperous and resilient India.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Kaiser Corporation Limited through its subsidiary is actively involved in manufacturing of specialized
Electronic and engineering services to Pipe, Power plants and Electronic heat industries in India and
abroad. The Company through its subsidiary Xicon International Limited is service oriented company
which excels in Turnkey projects and systems. The Company's subsidiary Xicon International Limited
is offering services to various domestic and international companies and Corporations like BHEL,
TATA Power Projects, ONGC, Linde, Indian Oil, Bharat Petroleum, and various other Multinationals.

OPPORTUNITIES, STRATEGICRESPONSESAND THREATS

Greatest interest in using Technology to drive business growth and accelerated adoption of Public
Cloud and great acceptance of E-Service platform. Overall business activities post pandemic has
increased with pgreat opportunities but still the industry has not recovered fully on domestic and
international level and the effectoffull revival will be reflected after six months.

THREATS

Many established businesses and new entrants vying for market share in the industry, which is marked
by a high degree of competitiveness. This results in strong pricing intensity, diminished pricing power,
and increased marketing and advertising expenditures. Changes in economic conditions, such as
inflation or recession, can have a detrimental effect on consumer spending and the demand for the
products. This can resultin decreased sales and revenue for businesses within the industry.

SAFETY AND HEALTH

Health and safety continues to be one of the most important values at Kaiser with its subsidiary. The
Company has a comprehensive approach to ensure that all employees, associates, assets and the
environment are protected from harm to achieve "Target Zero Harm'. It has adopted a proactive
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approach to health and safety management, which includes creating policies and procedures to
promote safe working practices and providing appropriate training to employees.

Additionally, the Company is also ensuring that it has the right systems in place to monitor
performance and identify potential risks before they become an issue. By taking these steps, TCL
ensures that its commitment to "Target Zero Harm' is met. The Company has a Board-level Safety,
Health, Environment and Sustainability policy.

INTERNAL CONTROLSYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

There is adequate internal control system in the company through internal Audit and repular
operations review with highestand most ethical standards of Quality, Technical Expertise, Consistency
and Customization imparted through the experience, training, knowledge and innovative process
implementation providing value [or money to customers regularly.

The Company through its subsidiary understands the challenges of coping with quality based pricing
and helping to meet the objectives in time and on budget.

Periodical physical verification of stocks during the year and adjustment of discrepancies
betweenthephysicalverificationandthebooksarerecordedappropriately.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The discussion in this section relates to the Consolidated Financial Reports pertaining to the year that
ended on 31st March 2025. The Financial Statement of the Companywith its subsidiary is prepared in
accordance with Ind AS (Referred to as Accounting standards)as prescribed under Section 133 of The
Companies Act 2013. Proper Accounting policies while preparing Financial Statements are disclosed
in notes to accounts.

Your Company's consolidated total income was to the tune of Rs. 2173.80lakhs compared to the
consolidated income of Rs. 2592.26 lakhs for the year and the net loss of Rs.196.77 lakhs compared to
the net Profit of Rs. 55.73 lakhs for the previous year.

STANDALONE

The stand alone total income was to the tune of Rs.73.25 lakhs compared to the stand alone income of
Rs.62.62 lakhs for the previous year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Frequent communication by Directors and team connects, rewards & recognition, and policy /process
changes were in place to keep the employees engaged and motivated. Putting employee's safety and
well being is a key to the success and growth of The Company. The Company aims to attracts, develop,
motivate and retain diversified talent which is critical for success of the Company. The Company
through its Subsidiary's talent management strategy seeks to maximize the potential of every
employee by creating purpose driven, inclusive, stimulating and rewards work environment while
fueling business growth.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Company has constituted a robust governance structure consisting of five levels, thereby ensuring
both bottom-up and top-down approaches. The Company's approach to risk management is designed
to provide reasonable assurance that its assets are safeguarded, and the risks facing the business are
being assessed and mitigated.

Geo- political situation like Russia-Ukraine war has forced global businesses to revisit their operations,
delivery, supply chains and contractual aspects. To safeguard the interests of its stakeholders, the
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Company has implemented a comprehensive risk management framework to identify, analyse and
manage business risks. The foundation for kaiser's risk management and governance is a strong and
well-built internal financial control system. The Company’s risk management framework focuses on
ensuring that risks are recognised and managed in a timely and reasonable manner from a top-down to
the bottom-up approach, and is kept flexible to adapt to evolving business requirements

ENHANCING SHAREHOLDER'SVALUE

You company continue to look for ways to achieve greater business success. Whether the measure is
growth, profit, return on investment, market share, or another similar way,and this means increasing
shareholder value. With the concept of the value delivery process solidly in mind, your company
increases shareholder values for time to time.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This document contains statements about expected [uture events, financial and operating results of
your Company, which are forward-looking. By their nature, forward-looking statements require the
Company to make assumptions and are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties. Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance as several [actors could cause assumptions, actual future results
and events to differ materially from those expressed. Accordingly, this document is subject to the
disclaimerand qualified in its entirety by the assumptions, qualifications and risk factors referred to in
the management’s discussion and analysis of Kaiser 's Intergrated Annual Report EY. 2024-25

e
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M S JOG & Associates

COMPANY SECRETARIES

A-602, Avantika, Dattapada Cross Road No.2

Borivali (East), Mumbai - 400066

Email: milindjog@outlook.com; Mobile : +91 7021323049

Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremenis) Regulations, 2015)

To, Date : 30™ July, 2025
The Board of Directors

Kaiser Corporation Limited

U. No.283-287, 'F" Wing, 2™ Floor,

Solaris-l, Saki Vihar Road, Andheri (E),

Mumbai 400072

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, relurns and disclosures received from the
Directors of Kaiser Corporation Limited having CIN : L22210MH1993PLC074035 and having
Registered Office at U. No.283-287, 'F Wing, 2™ Floor, Solaris-1, Saki Vihar Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai
400072 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me by the Company for the
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C
Sub Clause 10 (i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and
explanations furnished to me by the Company and its officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directors
on the Board of the Company as stated below as on the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025, have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Siatutory
Authority :

DIN Name Category Date of appointment in
the Company
00416032 | Bhushanlal Desraj Arora Managing Director 20/09/1993

02562003 | Anagha Anant kumar Korde | Non-Executive -
Independent Director | 30/09/2015
02244651 | Rajendra Ramchandra Vaze | Non-Executive -
Independent Director | 10/06/2008
01189358 | *Vipul Rashmikant Dave *Non-Executive -
Independent Director | 13/02/2025

*Resigned w.e.f. 07/05/2025.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
based on our verification.
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M S JOG & Associates
COMPANY SECRETARIES

A-602, Avantika, Dattapada Cross Road No.2

Borivali (East), Mumbai - 400066

Email: milindjog@outlook.com; Mobile : +91 7021323049

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs ofthe Company.

For M S Jog & Associates

Company Secretaries

Firm Unique Code S2024MH975900
Peer Review Certificate No.: 6118/2024

CS Milind Jog

Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice
MembershipNo. : A15403

CPNo. - 27225

UDIN :  A015403G000892037

Place : Mumbai
Date :30/07/2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OPINION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of M/s Kaiser
Corporation Limited ("hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary
company( the holding company and its subsidiary company together referred to as "the Group”),
which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheetasat March 31, 2025, the consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) and the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statementand Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the
consolidated Financial Statement.)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies [Indian Accounting Standard) Rules
2015 as Amended (IND AS) and the accounting principles generally accepted in India , of their
consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit and its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

EMPHASIS MATTER

We draw yourattention to In case of Subsidiary company, the company has not collected/paid from/
Lo overseas parties aggregating to Rs.705.00 lakhs and Rs. 35.52 lakhs out of respectively, which are
outstanding for recovery/payment for a period more than 3 years as at 31/03/2025. These
amounts have remained outstanding beyond period stipulated under Foreign Exchange
Management Act("FEMA'). Our Opinion is not modified in respect ofthese matters.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the IND AS [inancial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report:

Revenue Recognition under IND AS How our audit assessed the key matter
115: Revenue from contract with
customers: Fixed price contracts

The Company inter alia engages in Fixed-price Our audit procedures on revenue recognized
contracts, wherein, revenue is recognized from fixed price contracts includes:

using the percentage of completion computed
asper the input method based on the
Company's estimate of contract costs (Refer
Note 2(h) to the standalone financial
statements)

+ Obtained an understanding of the system
processes and controls implemented by
company for recording and computing
revenue.

=  With regards toinformation technology:
We identified revenue recognition of fixed

} ’ . o Assessed the IT environment which the
price contracts asa Key Audit Matter since: =

business system operates in and tested
a. it pertains to the major activity of the the system controls over which the
company and the recognition ol the revenue is recognized;
revenue depends on third party
certification based on the invoices raised,
and approved based on the survey.

0 Tested IT controls over appropriate-
ness of cost and revenue reports
generated by the system;

b. application of this standard is complex
and it involves number of key judgements
and estimates mainly in identifying
performance obligation and recognition
of revenue based on the stage of
completion of the contract on certified
invoices.

o Tested controls pertaining to
allocation of resources and budgeting
systems which prevent unauthorized
recording or changes to costs incurred
and controls relating to the estimation
of contract costs required to complete
the respective projects

INFORMATION OTHER THAN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The Holding Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s
Annual report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information compare with the financials statement of the subsidiary company audited by the
other auditor, to the extent it relates to these entities and in doing so ,place reliance on the work of
other auditors and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course ol our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FORTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance including Other Comprehensive Income, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and amendment thereof.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safepuarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS linancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realisticalternative but todo so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS consolidated linancial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a puarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from [raud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override ol internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.
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. Evaluate the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
poing concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going conceri.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves [air presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the group of which we are Independent Auditors and whose
financial information we have audited, to express an opinion on consolidated financial
statement. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the financial statement of such entities included in the consolidated financial statement of
which we are Independent Auditor. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in Consolidated Financial Statement that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Financial Statement may be influence. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factorsin L
Planning the scope of our Audit work and in evaluating the result of our work and Il. To evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatement in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Wealso provide those charged with governance of the Holding company with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the linancial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGALAND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far asitappears [rom our examination of those books.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profitand Loss including other
Comprehensive Income and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 asamended;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2025, from being appointed asadirector in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph (b) above paragraph (i)(f) below on reporting under
Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over linancial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure A

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the

requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the managerial remuneration paid or provided for by the group during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197(16) of the AcL.

I) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report inaccordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Group does not have any pending litigations which would have impact on its
financial position in its Consolidated Financial Statements.

b. The Group has did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

L. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed [unds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries™), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on
behalf of the Company or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. (c) Based
on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e)
contain any material mis-statement.
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e. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

i Based on our examination which included test checks the company and its subsidiaries which
are incorporated in India, has used such accounting software for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been
operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software and the audit trail
feature has not been tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved as per the provise to
Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2024 reporting
under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014.

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATESLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's RegistrationNo. 109420W

Shabbir Sbagasrawala

Partner

Membership No.039865
UDIN: 25039865BMIKNI2843
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date:30/05/2025
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ANNEXUREA
REPORT ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Report on the Internal Financial Controels under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of The
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s Kaiser Corporation
Limited ("the Holding Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the IND AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSILILITY FORINTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Holding Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued, by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of [rauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act,2013.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by 1CAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

1. Pertain to the maintenance ol records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.
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2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of managementand directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting Because of the
inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections ol any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future period are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SHABBIR & RITAASSOCIATESLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 109420W

Shabbir S Bagasrawala
Partner

Membership No. 039865

Place of Signature : Mumbai
Date :30/05/2025
UDIN:25039865BMIKNI2843
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2025

[¥in L.akhs)

Particulars Note No. As at Asat
Flst March 2025 Alst March 20024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(2] Property, plant and equipment ra 13B.94 154,79
(b)) Goodwill on Consolidation 2 21046 21046
() Other Intangible Assets 2 037 .52
{d) Financial Assets
[i} Investmonts 3 1.32 3.66
[ii) Other Financial Assets E .
(&) Deferred Tax Assets b G053 27.19
() Other Non-current Assets 1 13041 FOFR
Total Non-current Assels 54Z.05 467.39
Current Asscts
{a]) Inventorles & 1.023.59 1.204.78
(b)) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivablios 7 LATO. 77T 1,Z264.35
(11} Cash and cash egquivalents a8 5.54 1669
(1ii) Other bank balances o9 2.15 56,15
(] Othor Current Assots Lty LOZ1.5& 713.09
Total Current Assets 3.223.57 3, 255.06
TOTAL ASSETS 2. 765.62 2, TEZE. A0
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a] Equity Share capital 11 526.0Z 526.02
(b)) (Onher 1-21.||.|:i:ly 12 BY. 26 1 5% 4
Total Equity 6l13.28 TEL5.46
Mon-Controlling lnterest 27750 3271.21
290.78 1,096.67
LIABILITIES
Mon-current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 13 5.53 4.29
Total NMon-current liabilities 5.53 429
Currcnt liabilitics
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowinggs 11 1.854.61 1.22H.89
(ii) Tradc pavables 15
PDue to Micro and Small Enterprises 88.10 39.28
e Lo O3Eliesrs S28.79 FAT.35
(1ii) Other financial abilities 15 56,91 39,02
(b} Other current lHabilities 17 33648 S568.90
(] Provisions 18 G637 1.85
{«l]) Cuarrent Tax Liabilities[ Net) 1.0 G619
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2.869.31 Z2,6Z21.49
TOTAL LIABILITIES Z.874.84 Z.0Z5.78
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 32, 7TLE.62 3, 722.46
See accompanying notes 1 to 57 forming
[rart of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached.
For SHABRBRIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHARTERED ACCOIINTANTS
FIRM'S HREG, MO, 1094 20W
SHABBIR S BAGASRAWALA Bhushanlal Arora Hajendra Ramochandra Vaze
PARTMER Managing Director DVirector
MEMBERSHIP MO, 039865 DN Mo, 00416032 DIN Mo, 02244651
Jinal Jain Lyia Jamsheed Moehta
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary Chiel Financial Officer
[arte : 30th May 2025 Mombership No. AG9185
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31st, 2025 (T im Lalkhs]
m La 145

Ve emmded Year ended
Particulars Mote Mo, 2
™1 %1st March 2025 315t March 2024
INCOME
1 Revenue from Uperations 1% La79.98 2,557.50
I | Other Income 20 L193.41 3476
1 jTotal Income [(1+11) 2,173 .80 Z,592.26
I'v JEXPENSES
[a] Cust ol Materials Consrmed 21 R, T & 1, 743.02
(b)) Purchases of Stack-im=Trade 2z 2109 17991
(e} Chanpges in inventories ol linizhed goods, Stock-in-Trade and work-in- ag 12033 [ G5 )
Propress
[(d} Employes Benefits Expente 24 27924 05.94
(] Finanee Cosis 25 PRELHILEN | LG4, 45
[F] Depreciation and Amortisation Hxpense 2 1577 17.31
[} Other Exponses 27 137800 B62.28
Total expenses Z413.10 Z.53Z.40
¥V | Profit/{loss) before excoptional items and tax (111-1V) [239.31] G986
vl | Exceptional Items
VI1 [Profit/ {loss) before tax (239.31) 59,86
VI 'Tax expensze
{a) Curtent Tax 1.06 2034
(b} Doforrod Tax [33.35) [3.62)
{c) Tax Adjustment of Rarier Years (9.9 [21.200)
() MAT Crodit set off/ (entitlemient ] {0.33) B.&0
Tolal Tax Expense [#Z.53) 413
1 |Profit/[less) for the vear (A) [196.77) 55.73
¥ |Other Comprehensive Income 28
Al ltems that will not be reclassifed
subsoquently to profit or loess
{1] Remeasurement [gain/[loas]] of net defined benefit labilit [6. 76} [2.25)
{1} Effect [gain/{loss)] of measuring equity Instraoments at Falr Value A (2.43)
through Other Comprohensive Income [FYTOC]) =39) L
[iii} Imcome 1ax on above (LRI
subsequently to proft or loss
(i) Fair ¥alue changes on Derivatives designated s Cash Flow Fedges - -
[ii} Imcome tax on abowve - -
[ Total Other Comprehensive Income (B) (%11 [4.75]
Total Comprehensive Income for the vear (A)+[B) {205.89 50.98
Total compréhensive income / (loss) attributable to:
rwinersof the Paront [112.18] 29.58
Non-controlling interests (932.71) 21.40
Of the Total Comprehensive income J [loss) Included above, Profit /
(lo=ss) for the year attributable to :
rwners of the Parent [107.14) 3221
Mon-controlling interests (8961 23,52
Of the Total Comprebensive Income /[logs] included above, Other
comprechensive income / (loss) attributable to:
Crarners of the Parent (5.0 [2.62]
Mon=controlling interesgs [ ChER) [2-12Z])
Earnings per equity share:
Basic and diluted (in Bs.) {020 0.06&
See accompanying notes 1 to 57 forming part of the financial
statements
In terms of our repoert attached.
For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP FONR ANI ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM'S HEG. NLL 109420W
Bhushanlal Arora Hajondra Ramchandea Vaee
Managing Direcior Director
SHABHIKE S HAGASHAWALA DN Mo, G041603 2 EHN Nu. 02244651
FARTNER
MEMBERSHIF NOY, 039865
Place + Marmbeal Jimal fain Lyvla jamsheed Mehia
Date ; 30th May 2025 Company Scoretary Chibel Financial Oflicer
Membership No. ASS185
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the yvear ended 31st March 2025
% in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax [239.321) 59.88
Adjustment for:
Interest income [B.50) [B.04}
Finamca Cost 189.93 164.45
Depreciation and omortization cxpense 15.77 17.31
Lz [Prafit] on sale of property, plant and equipment [net) = 0.19
Profit on sale of investments [RERATRE] [y
Sundry Balances / advances wiritten off 12.16 -
Provision for doubtful debis 121.65 3023
lnterest in O] {9.11]) [4.75)
Miscellaneous Income: [157.28) -
Lrividend received [0.00) (.o}
Difference In Exchange Rate [Net) [18.00) [8.19)
Operating profit before working capital changes (92.71) 251.07
Movements in working capital:
Decrease/(increase] in trade recelvables and other receivables [9.72] Ta6.20
Decrease/{increase] in other inancial assets E -
Decrease/(increase] in inventories 18119 (559.62)
DecreaseS{increase] in non-current assets [67.32) (54.21})
Decrease/(increase] in current ossets [298.18) (11602}
{Decrease]fincrease in trade payables ond other payables [7.10) [566.73)
Decrease/(increase] in other current liabilities [232.27) 22821
Decrease M{increass] in other non-current Habilities 1.24 012
Decrease/(incrense] in other inoncial liabilities 1888 {41.34)
Decreasef{incrense ) in Curront Tax Liabilitios [6.13]) {21.03)
Decrease/{incrense] in short term provisions 4.52 0.23

Cash penerated from operations (507.69) (83.14)
Diirect taxes pald (net refunds) E

Net eash fMlow from oporating activities [A] (507.69) [(B3.14)

Cash Mlows from Investing activities
Fuarchase nf property, plant and eguipment [incloding capital [4.0f] (637}
work in progress and capital advance)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - -

Purchase of Investimnent (.03 [O.05}
Proceeds from sale of investments a.ai1 ooz
Procoeds from Mxed deposit (having original maturity of less than 12 months) S4.410 A9.43
Imierest in (el 235 243
Interest income H.50 B4
Fivlddend |nesme 0.0 [ER 4]
Net cash NMow used in investing activitios [B] 60.75 G400

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance Cost [ 1B9.83) [164.45)
PFroceeds fromy [ Repayment of) barrowings (net] 2572 204.47
Net cash flow from J [used in) financing activites [C] 43579 4002
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents (A+HB+C) {11.15) 10.89
Cash and cash equivalents - Opening balance [refer note 13) 16.69 5.80
Cash and cash eguivalents - Closing balance [refer note 13) 5.54 L6.69
Add/ [Less): Unresilised exchange (gain)f loss

Net increase / (decrease] as disclosed above (11.15) 10.89

MNobes:

L. Al Fgures in bracket are ontflow,
2. Above Cash fow statement has been prepared under Thdireet method' as et out In the lnd A5 - 7 on 'Cash Flow Statemonts’.

Summary of sipnificant acdounting policies - Refer nota 2
The accompanying notes form an inkegral part of the financial statomonts

I terms of our report attachied.

For sSHARBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FIRM'S REG. NO. LD9420W

SHABBIR 5 BAGASRAWALA Bhushanlal Arvra Rajemira Ramchandra Vaze
FARTNER Managing Drector Mrector
MEMBERSHIP NO. 039865 MM Mo, L0332 N Mo 2244651
Tinol fain Lyln [nmsheed Mehin
Place 1 Mumbai Company Secretary Chief Financial Offlcer
Date : 300 May 2025 Membership No, AS9185
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31st, 2025

A. Equity Share Capital

(% in Lakhs)
Particolars AmaiEnt
Balance as at April 1, 2023 Sd6.02
Add: Changes in Equity $hare Capital during the year
Balance ag ar March 31, 2024 RE602
Add: Changes in Equity $hare Copital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2025 526.02
B, Deler Equit
quilty T in Lakhs)
Resurves & Surplus Items of OC1 N
ity Remeasurement e
Particulars Retaned |General | Capital || SAWRY | Remeasurem Total | Controlling | Total
Earnings |Reserve | Reserve I
through 001 | Benefit Plan mieret

Balance as at April 1, 2023 147.7a | 7.00 14413 {477] 544 16586 349.81 51967
Profiz for the Periel 3221 - - - - 221 23,52 55.73
Less: Mar Credit Entidement - - - : -
Le=s1 Earlier period Taxes - - - . -
{(ther Camprebenstve Income-for the year, Net of Income Tox - - - {L2H] {134 [2.62) {L12] [4.75]
Balance us at March 31, 2024 17996 | 7.01 1403 | [6.05] 4419 199,44 37121 ETLGG
Balance us at April 1, 2024 17e9a | 7.01 1403 [A.05) £49 199,44 37121 5T lLn6
Profit for the perted [10T.14] - - - [107.14) (B9.63] -196.77
Other Comprelensive Invanse for the yeur, set of Incume e - - - [3.74] [1:20] (5014 [4.08] [.11)
Halanices as al March 31, 2025 7282 | 7.01 14.0% {9,791 319 H7 26 277.50 6477

In terms ol oor report attached

For SHARRIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM'S REG. NO. 109420W

SHAHBIR § BAGASRAWALA
PARTNER
MEMBERSHIP MO, 039865

Mace : Mumbai
Date | 3dth May 2025

Bhushanlal Arora

For and on behall of the Board of Directors

itajendra Ramchanidra Vaze

Managing Director Director

DIN Mo, (1 6032 [N Mo, F2244651
[l sk Lyla Jamsliesd Melts
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Membership No. AS9185
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 2: Property, Plant and Equipment

[T in Lakis)
Gross Block Depreciation Net Block
Particulars Ason ! Az on Upitin Far the Upto As on As on
31032024 | Additions | Deletions | 54 03 5095| 01.04.2024| Fo7 the Year | eeis sold | 31.03.2025 | 31.03:2025 | 31.03.2024
Owned Assets
Leasehald Land 14,08 - - 19,048 - - - - 1008 10,08
Bullding 188.66 . - 1B8.66 9270 756 . 100.25 BA.41 Q597
Plant & Machinery 2499 77 425 0251 5592 6k : 1653 2590 33.07
Dffice Equipments 2138 0.3 - 2166 1800 .45 - 1855 i a8
Furmiture & fixture 837 - - 637 539 0.14 . 5.53 (84 .58
Etectricols Installntion 9,20 - - 920 745 003 - 7AR 1.72 1.75
Vehicles 1.70 . 0os 1.64 1.56 0.03 . L&D 0.04 0.13
Compater 1.4% . - 149 1.04 0.29 . 133 017 0.46
Total 344,85 4.08 441 34062 18606 1562 - 201.68 128.94 15479
Intangible Assels
Software 761 . = 7.6l 709 015 . .24 0.37 0.52
Goedwill on consolidatiom - - - - - -
Total Current Year 4846 4.08 431 4823 193.15 1577 - 0892 1349.31 15531
3 Nonp-current Investments
(T in Lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31stMarch 2024

Investments measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income
Unquoted
Investments in Equity Shares
117000 (Previous Years 117000 ) Equity Shares of Heat Trace 1.19 3.54
Xicon Limited of Bs.10/- each fully paid up*

Investments measured at Amortised Cost

Quoted
B0( Previous Year 60) Equity shares of Tata Steel 0.10 0.07
6( Previous Year 6) Equity sharves of BF Utilities 0.02 0.02
O Previous Year 62) Equity shares of TV18 Broadcast - 0.02
17( Previous Year () Equity Shares of Network 18 Media & 0.01
Investments Ltd
MNote: TV18 Broadcast Ltd merged with Network 18 Media &
Investments and 17 shares were received of Network 18 Media
& [nvestments against 30 shares of TV18 Broadcast Ltd.
Total 1.32 3.66
| Aggregate Amount Of Quoted Investments 0.12 0.11
Aggregate Amount Of Ungu oted Investments 1.19 3.54

*Falr value has been estimated by the management based on the unaudited financial statements of the
investee company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

4 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

{3 in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
arhieuiars 31st March 2025 | 31stMarch 2024
Deferred Tax Asset on Account of:
Disallowance Expenses
Difference between Book Value And WDV 0.07 -
Impact of Provision for Retirement benefit 4.04 2.58
Estimated Credit Loss 33.84 2437
FVTOC! 0.87 0.87
lmpact of Unabsorbed depreciation and Lossess 1111 -
Impact of Provision for MSME Creditors 12.51 1.94
Total (A) 62.44 29.76
Deferred Tax Liabhility on Account of :
Impact of Provision for retirement benefit - -
Bonus - -
Difference between Book Value And WDV 1.90 2.57
Total (B) 1.90 2.57
Deferred Tax Assets / (Liability) [Net] : (A)-(B) 60.53 | 27.19
Other Non-current Assets
{in Lakls)
Particular: Asat e
s 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
(Unsecured considered good unless stated otherwise)
Capital Advances 15.00 20.95
Prepaid Expenses £.93 1.70
On Margin Money Accounts® 108.48 48.12
With Maturity More than 12 Months from Balance Sheet Date
Total 130.41 70.78
Inventories
(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars Asut Asat
31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
At lower of cost or Net Realisable Value
Raw Materials 221.01 281.87
Work-in-progress 763.75 879.77
Stock in trade (Trading) 38.83 43.14
Total 1,023.59 1,204.78
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

7 Trade Receivables

{% in Lakhs)

Particulars Asat Asat
: 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024

Unsecured

Considered good 1,170.77 1,264.35

Considered Doubtful 209.26 87.61
1,380 1,352

Less - Allowance for bad and doubtlul debts (Refer Note 44 ) 209,26 87.61

Total 1,170.77 1,264.35

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience

and adjusted for forward-looking information.

8 Cash and Cash Equivalents

[Fin Lakhs)
; As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
A. Cash on hand 016 0.28
B. Balances with Banks
Current Accounts 5.38 5.16
In deposit accounts® - 11.25
Total 5.54 16.69
9 (ther bank balances
(% in Lakhs)
. As at As at
Pt o 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Un Margin Money Accounts 2.15 56.15
With Maturity within 12 Months from Balance Sheet Date
Total 2.15 56.15

*Fixed deposils are under lien with banks towards working capital facilities
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10 Other Current Assels

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

A. Advances Other Than Capital advances

B. Others
Loans and advances to suppliers [Unsecured, considered good) 284.88 223.77
Balances with Government Authorities 235.42 257.16
Prepaid Gratuity 2.07 3.97
Prepaid Expenses 0.45 11.81
Provision for Sales 464.29 171.940
Other Adavance - 4.78
MAT Credit 1.32 0.98
Security Deposit 28.13 30.23
Advance to Staff 4.96 0.849
Uthers Receivable - 7.60
Taotal 1,021.52 713.09
11 Equity Share Capital
(T in Lakhs)

Particulars Aval Aot

31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Authorised

100,000,000 (Previous Years100,000,000) Equity shares of Rs.1/-

each L000.00 1,000.00
Total Authorised share Capital 1,000.00 1,000.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up
52,621,020 (Previous Years 52,621,020) Equity Shares of Rs.1/-

each 526.21 526.21
Less: Call in Arrears [(L19) [0.19)
Total Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital 526,02 526,02
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12 Other Equity
(% in Lakhs)
As at As at
Ertionlars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Capital Reserve 1403 14.03
Share Premium 7.01 7.01
Retained Earnings
Retained Earnings through Profit & Loss 72.82 179.96
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of income tax - -
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income (2.79) (6.05)
Remeasurement of Net delined benefit obligations 3.19 4.49
Total 87.26 199.44
13 Non-current Provisions(Long Term) (% in Lakhs)
. As at As at
Particniars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Provision for employee benefits
Leave Encashment 5.53 4.29
Total 5.53 4.29
14 Current Borrowings(Short Term) (T in Lakhs)
As at As at
CHERONARS 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Secured
A. Loans Repayable on demand
From Banks
Open Cash Credic® 73894 848.09
Overdraft ** - 4.67
MSME Term Loan *** - 1.21
UnSecured
From Directors 36.00 25.00
From Other Parties 1.079.67 349.93
Total 1,854.61 1,228.89
1 *Cash credit faclity are secured against:
A) Primary

First and exclusive hypothecation charge on all existing and future receivables / current assets/ moveable assets/
maveahle fixed assets of the Borrower.

B) Collateral

"I} First and exclusive charge on immoveable properties being Leasehold land and bullding situated at Office
premises at Gala No 282 to ZB7 at Solaris - 1, Saki Vihar Reoad, Opp L& T Gate No 7, Powai owned by Xicon
international lnited”

"ii] First and exclusive charge on Factory at Plot Mo D-13, MIDC Murbad, Near Ambe Ferro Metal Processor, Murbad,
Taluka Murbad, District Thane owned by Xicon internatonal Limited,”

ifi] Title search report of the property to be found satisfactory to the Banle

C) Guarantee

"I} Corporate guarantese /s of Kaiser Corporation and Lorance Investments and Trading Limited,

Cash credit facility & Temparory Overdraft Facility (TOL) carries interest at 9.35 M MCLR +1.35% and repayahle on
demand
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*EEMSME term Loan

Second charge on all existing and future receivables/current assets,/moveable assets/moveable fixed assets of the
Borrower,

SME term loan carries interest rate &@8% pa and payable in 48 months including moratorium period of 12 Months)

15

16

17

18

Trade Payables

[Tin Lakhs)

As at
Fartcajs 31stMarch 2025 | 31st MAVEN 2024
Trade Payables
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises [Refer Note No 46) 88.10 39.28
Due to Others 525.79 737.35
Total 613.88 T776.63
Other financial liabilities
(% in Lakhs)
. As at Asat
Fartenrs 31stMarch 2025 | 31st March 2024
Interest Accrued and due on MEME Creditors 7.69 5.099
Fair Value of financial Gaurantee Obligation - -
Salary Payable 33.83 20.46
Other Payable 15.39 12.57
Total 56.91 39.02
Other Current Liabilities
(% in Lakhs)
. As at As at
Fardeulars 31stMarch 2025 | 31stMarch 2024
Other Payables
(i} Statutory Dues 57.29 B.44
(i} Advances from customers 279.19 560,41
Total 33648 568.90
Provisions
(% in Lakhs)
: Asat Asat
Fardeniars 31stMarch 2025 | 31st March 2024
Provision for employee benefits :
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 34) 4.60 -
Provision for Leave Encashment 1.55 1.66
Outstanding Expense Payable 0.22 0.19
Total 6.37 1.85

63. KAISER CORPORATION LTD.




KAISER CORPORATION LTD.

THIRTY SECOND ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

19

20

21

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Revenue From Operations (% in Lakhs)
Particalans Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Sale of Products 1,401.32 2,251.80
Sale of Service 577.14 266.34
Other Operating Revenues
Sale of Scrap 1.52 1.56
Duty Draw Back - 37.80
Total Revenue From Operations 1,979.98 2,557.50
Other Income
(R in Lakhs)
PG Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Interest from Bank on Deposit 8.01 6.86
Difference In Exchange Rate (Net) 18.00 8.19
Interest from Others 0.48 1.17
7.62 14.98
Excess Provision / Sundry Balances Written Back
Fair Value Gaurantee Income - -
Rent Received 2.40 240
Miscellaneous income 157.28 1.14
Short Term Gain Sales of Shares 0.00 -
Provision for Doubtful Debts - -
Long Term Capital Gain on Shares - 0.00
Dividend 0.00 p.oo
Total 193.81 34.76
Cost of materials consumed
(% in Lakhs)
it Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Raw Material
Opening Stock of Raw material 281.87 362.76
Add: Purchases 347.88 1.662.14
Less: Closing Stock of Raw material (221.01) (281.87)
Total Cost of materials consumed 408.74 1,743.02
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22 Purchase of Stock in Trade

(T in Lakhs)

T Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Printing Material / Electrical Heat Tracers 21.09 17991
Total 21.09 179.91
23 Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-Trade and work-in-progress
(¥ in Lakhs)
Prassiordsiye Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Stocks at the end
Finished Good - -
Work-in-progress 763.75 879.77
Stock-in-Trade 38.83 43.14
802.58 922.91
Less: Stocks at the beginning
Finished Good - -
Work-in-progress 879.77 21482
Stock-in-Trade 43.14 67.58
922.91 282.40
Total 120.33 (640.51)
24 Employee Benefits Expense
(% in Lakhs)
Particalirs Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 266.41 194.25
Contributions to Provident and Other Funds 10.85 8.73
Staff Welfare Expenses 1.99 2.97
Total 279.24 205.94

25 Finance Costs

(¥ in Lakhs)

Year ended

Year ended

Partienlurs 31st March 2025 | 31stMarch 2024

Interest expense on:
Secured loan 99.60 99.09
Unsecured Loans 46.57 G2.88
Statutory Delay Payment 17.56 1.15
Other borrowing costs - 11.34
Total 163.73 164.45
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26 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

(F in Lakhs)

e Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Depreciation Expense 15.62 17.31
Amortisation Expense 0.15

Total 15.77 17.31

27 Other Expenses
(¥ in Lakhs)
Fatiieuiare Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024

Stores, spares, packing materials and consumables 136.11 118,77
Freight charges 05.23 58.54
Subcontractors charges 531.64 193.11
Equipment Hire charges 146.33 14.70
Printing charges 0.03 -
Other manufacturing expenses - -
Liguidated damages - 29.28
Insurance 1.97 15.08
Bank Charges 0.01 0.01
Sundry Balances Written Off - -
Power and fuel 42.60 30.09
Rates and taxes 19.54 7.07
Communication expenses 0.04 0.06
Travelling and conveyance 42.01 3753
Advertising and sales promotion 1.08 1.01
Provision for doubtful debts 121.65 30.23
Repairs and maintenance - -
- Buildings 4.07 2.90
- Plant and machinery 2.93 2.15
- others 0.20 0.31
Legal And Professional Fees 49.37 50.64
Payment to auditor - -
- Audit fees 1.02 1.02
- Tax audit fees 0.20 0D.60
- Others 0.55 0.08
Selling expenses 15.79 153.94
Security charges 15.90 6.90
Miscellaneous expenses 149.73 10827
Total 1,378.00 B862.28
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28 Other Comprehensive Income
(¥ in Lakhs)

Other Item of
- H Total
Particulars comprehensive
income

For the year ended 31 March 2025
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(2.35) [2.35)
(i) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income

(6.76) (6.76)
(ii) Remeasurement gain/(loss) of defined benefits obligations
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassitied - <
to profit or loss
Total (9.11) (9.11)
For the year ended 31 March 2024
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income (2.43) (2.43)
(ii) Remeasurement gain/(loss) of defined benefits obligations

(2.25) (2.25)
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 0.07
to profit or loss 0.07
Total (4.75) (4.75)
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2.01

2.02

2.03

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

CORPORATE INFORMATION

oflabels and cartons in India. The Company was incorporated on 20 September 1993, having its
registered office at t Unit no-283-287 second floor F Wing Solaris-1 saki vihar road Andheri east
Mumbai.The Company has one subsidiary namely, Xicon International Limited which is
engaged in offering Turnkey Project Management and Engineering services. These
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025 are approved
and adopted by the Board of Directors of the company in their meeting held on 30th May 2025."

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION
Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements :

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except
for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values and the provision of the
Companies Act, 2013.1In addition, the guidance notes/annoucements issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) are also applied except where compliance with other
statutory promulgations requiresadifferent treatment.

The Ind AS are presented under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended ("Ind AS") and the accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee and all values are stated in
Rs. Lakhs or decimal thereof, except when otherwise indicated. Wherever the amount
represents () (zero), value construes less than Rupees five hundred.

Key accounting estimatesand judgments

"The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity of Ind AS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, the disclosures of contingent
assets and contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements, income and expenses during
the period. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in future periods which are
affected.

Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates and assumption
having the mostsignificant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are:”

Usefullife of property, plantand equipment
Useful life of intangible assets
Measurement of defined benefit obligation
Valuation of financial instruments

Provisions
Currentversus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. Anasset is treated as current when it is:
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- Expected to be realized orintended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted [rom being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for atleast twelve months after the reporting period.

All otherassets are classified as non-current.

Aliability is current when:

- Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

2.04 Recentaccounting pronouncements

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended
Schedule 111 of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, [1 and [l of Schedule
[l and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating to Division [l which relate to
companies whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015are:

BalanceSheet:

» Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities|, duly
distinguished as current or non-current.

» Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in
equity share capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the
current reporting period.

» Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

s Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-
progress and intangible asset under development.

» |fa company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from
banks and financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where ithas beenused.

» Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with
approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title
deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, loans and advances to
promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of
benami property held etc.
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3.01

Statement of profitand loss :

= Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed
income and crypto or virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional information’ in
the notes forming part ol the standalone financial statements.

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to themas
required by law.

Summary ofsignificantaccounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary ( together referred to as the "Group”) asat 31st March 2025. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee ifand only if the Group has:

(i) Power over the investee (Le. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

(ii) Exposure, orrights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
(iii)  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support
this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of
aninvestee, the Group considers all relevant [acts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over aninvestee, including:

a) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

b) The ability to use its power over the investee to affectits returns

c) The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

d) The size of the group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the

holdings of the other voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a
subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

"Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that
group member’s [inancial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to
ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.”

The consolidated linancial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the
parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the
subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assels and liabilities recognized in the
consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.
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(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(0

(2)

Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and
the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains
how to account for any related goodwill.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting
from intragroup transactions that are recognized in assets, such as inventory and [lixed
assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that
requires recognition in the consoelidated financial statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes
applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses
resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (0CI) are attributed
to the equity holders of the parent ofthe Group and to the non-controlling interests, even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements ol subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation except as stated in point ©
above.

Investments in associate

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control
or joint control. This is generally the case where the Group holds between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method
ofaccounting (see (f) below), after initially being recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or
losses of the investee in profit and loss, and the Group’s share of other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment
equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behall of the other entity. Unrealised gains on
transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. The carrying amount of equity
accounted investments are tested for impairment.

Changes in ownership interests

"The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in aloss
of control as transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised within equity. When the Group ceases to
consolidate or equity account foran investment because of a loss of control, joint control
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or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised in Consolidated Profitand Loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial assel. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. If the ownership interestina
joint venture or an associate is reduced but joint control or significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit orloss where appropriate.”

(h) The excess of cost to the Parent Company of its investment in the subsidiary over the
Parent Company’s portion of equity of the subsidiary is recognised in the Consolidated
Financial Statements as Goodwill. This Goodwill is tested for impairment at the end of
the financial year. The excess of Parent Company's portion of equity over the cost of
investment as at the date ofits investment is treated as Capital Reserve.

(1) The financial statements of the subsidiaries [ associates used in consolidation are
drawn upto the same reporting date as that of the Parent Company.

3.02 a) Following subsidiary companies and entities which are contolled by the Company

are consolidated :
Sn Name of the Country of | Nature of Proportion of Date of
No. Company incorporation | Principal equily interest becoming
and principal activily subsidiary
place of Az at 31st Asat 31st
business March 2025 March 2024
Subsidiary companies
1 Kf'l:urn International India Infr..u:lrucl_ure 55.25% 55250 01.05.2011
Limited Project

3.03 Businesscombinationsand goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount ol any non- controlling interests in the acquire. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non- controlling interests
in the acquire at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognized at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include
contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition
fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not
probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are
measured at the basis indicated below:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognized and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind
A5 19 Employee Benefits, respectively
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3.04

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest
held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net
assets acquired is in excess of the aggrepate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses
whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and
reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognized at the acquisition date. [f
the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognized in other comprehensive
income ("OCI") and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear
evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognizes the gain directly in equity as capital reserve,
without routing the same through OCL

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating units that are expected to
benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree
are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairmentannually, or
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognized in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognized for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash generating unit and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the poodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control shall be
accounted for using the pooling of interests method - wherein:

(a) The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying
amounts.

(b} The excess, if any, in the value of net assets and reserves Lo be vested in the transferee
company, would be credited to the ‘Capital Reserve Account”

(¢} No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognize any new assels or liabilities.
The only adjustments thatare made are to harmonize accounting policies. The business
combination has been restated from earliest period presented.

Foreign currencies

"Functional and Presentation Currencyltems included in the financial statements of the Group
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group
operates ('the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee
(INR), which is Group's functional and presentation currency.”
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3.05

"Transactions and BalancesForeign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses
from settlement of these transactions, and from translation of monetary asselts and liabilities at
the reporting date exchange rates are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss except in case of certain long term foreign currency monetary items where the treatment as
under:”

Non monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in foreign currency are
reported using the exchange rates at the dates of the transaction.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss ona net basis.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability inan
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

In the principal market forthe assetor liability, or
Inthe absence ofa principal market, in the mostadvantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
actin their economic bestinterest

A [air value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the assetinits highestand best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input thatis significant to the fair value measurement asawhole:

Level 1 -Quoted (unadjusted) market pricesinactive markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowestlevel input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input thatis significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the [inancial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) atthe end of each reporting period.

The Group's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair
value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued
operations.
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3.06

3.07

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group's accounting
policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevant documents.

For the purpose ol fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for [air value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

Revenuerecognition

Revenue from contracts with customer is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services

Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with Customers” provides a control-based revenue
recognition model and provides a five step application approach to be followed for revenue
recognition.

A) Identify the contract(s) with customer;

B) ldentify the performance obligations;

C) Determine the transaction price;

D) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;

E) Recognise revenue when or as an entity satisfies performance obligation.

Revenue from operations
Saleofgoods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised net of indirect taxes.

Erection and commissioning, Claims including escalation charges and Contractual liquidated
damages

Revenue on erection and commissioning of contracts is recognised on the 'Percentage of
completion method'. Claims including escalation are recognised as revenue on client's
acceptance or evidence of acceptance. Contractual liquidated damages payable for delays in
completion of contract work or for other causes are accounted for at costs when deducted,
and/or when such delays and causes areattributable to the Company.

Otherincome:
Interestincome

Under Ind AS109, Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to
the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial
assets classified as measured at fair value through Profitand loss (FVTPL)

Rental income arising from operating lease on investment property is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Dividend Income
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Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive
payment have been established.

3.08 Taxes
1)

iii)

Currentincome tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company operates and generates
taxable income.

Current income taxes are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax
relates to items recognized outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates position taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subjected to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Delerred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assels are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Delerred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
conseguences that would follow [rom the manner in which the Company expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amountof its assets and liabilities.

Deferred income tax assets is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
tax loss can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to
the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period. In the year in which the Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT)
credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the
recommendations contained in puidance issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit
and loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each
balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to
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the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the specified period.

3.09 Property, plantand equipment

3.10

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and where
applicable accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost
of materials, direct labour and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a
working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent Cost

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) includes cost of property, plant and equipment under
installation / under development, as at balance sheet date. All project related expenditure vie
civil works, machinery under erection, construction and erection materials, preoperative
expenditure incidental / attributable to the construction of projects, borrowing cost incurred
prior to the date of commercial operations and trial run expenditure are shown under CWIP.
These expenses are net of recoveries and income (net of tax) from surplus funds arising out of
project specificborrowings.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Property, Plant and Equipment are eliminated from the Consolidated Financial Statements,
either on disposal or when retired from active use.

Gains and losses on disposals or retirement of assets are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation

"Property, Plant and Equipment have been depreciated under written down value method as
per the useful life and in the manner prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act. *

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lifes, are measured
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the intangible asset.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure
oninternally generated poodwill and brands, are recognized in profit orloss as incurred.
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Amortisation of intangible assets with [inite uselul lives:

Useful life as per

management Amortisation method

Asset class

Computer software 3- 6 years Amortisation on written
down value basis

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted ifappropriate.

Derecognition ofassets

An item of intangible asset and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected [rom its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the income statement when the asset is
derecognized.

Amortisation Method :

Computer software is amortized under the written down value method over a period of 3 -6
years for which the Group expects the benefits to acerue.

3.11 Borrowing costs

"Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production ofan asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part ofthe cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to
the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. Interest income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.”

3.12 Inventories:

i) Inventories are valued at weighted average method or net realizable value whichever is
lower. Obsolete, defective and unserviceable stocks are provided for, whenever
required.

if) Work in process includes material cost, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in

bringing them to their present location and condition.

iii) Stores and spares are charged / written off to the manufacturing and operating
expenses in the year of purchase.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.13 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

"Provisions for lepal claims and returns are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
berequired to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses. Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
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end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specilicto
the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as finance
cosL.A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is
probable that an outflow of resources will not be required to settle the obligation. However, if
the possibility of outflow of resources, arising out of present obligation, is remote, it is not even
disclosed as contingent liability.A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where
there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. A Contingent asset is not recognized in Consolidated Financial
Statements, however, the same is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefitis probable.”

3.14 (a) Impairment of financial assets

3.15

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial
recognition other than financial assets in FVTPL category. For financial assets other
than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Group recognizes 12 month expected
credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the
credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial
recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses
if the credit risk on financial assets increases significantly since its initial recognition.
The Group's trade receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss
allowance on trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected
losses i.e. expected cash shortfall. The impairment losses and reversals are recognized in
Statementof Profitand Loss.”

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether thereisan indication that an asset

may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher ol an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset. unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or Group's assets. When the carrying amount of
anassetor CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the assetis considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognized at fair value, in case of Financial
assets which are recognized at fair value through profitand loss (FVTPL), its transaction
cost are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction
cost are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.
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Subsequent measurement
Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at

Amortized Cost: Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate ('EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortization of
EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Fair Value through profit and loss {(FVTPL) : A financial asset not classified as either
amortized cost or FVYOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at
fair value with all changes in [air value, including interest income and dividend income
if any, recognized as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets that are held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and
collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income
measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to "other income’ in the Statement of
Profitand Loss.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, exceptif and in the
period the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Debt Instruments :

Debt instruments are initially measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVOCI') or fair value through profit or loss (‘'FVTPL) till
derecognition on the basis of (i) the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assetsand (ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

% (a) Measured at amortized cost: Financial assets that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate ("EIR’) method less
impairment, ifany. The amortization of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if
any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b)  Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets
that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling
financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR method
and impairment losses, if any are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to 'other income’ in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

(c) Measured at [air value through prolit or loss: A financial asset not classified as
either amortized cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial assetsare
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measured at fair value with all chanpes in fair value, including interest income
and dividend income if any, recognized as "other income’ in the Statement of
Profitand Loss.

Equity Instruments:

All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at
fair value, the Group may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at
FVOClor FVTPL.

The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes onan
equity instrument is recognized as other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the
Group has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCL Fair value changes excluding
dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognized in OCL. Amounts
recognized in OCl are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profitand Loss. Dividend
income on the investments in equity instruments are recognized as 'other income’ in the
Statement of Profitand Loss.

Trade Receivables and Loans:

Trade receivables and loans are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are
held at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit
losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through the expected life
of financial instrument.

Derecognition

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
assel.

Financial Liabilities:
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortized cost
unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss. In case of
trade payables, they are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are
held at amortized cost, using the effective interest method.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortized cost: After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortized costis calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or coststhatare an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs
in the Consolidated Statement ol Profitand Loss.

"{a)  Borrowings:Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest rate method. Fees paid on the establishment of
loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is
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3.16

"(b)

probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which

it relates.”

Trade and Other Payables:These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.”

Derecognition

"A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another [rom the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Consolidated
Statement of Profitand Loss.”

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The lepally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

Employee Benefits
I) Defined contribution plans (Provident Fund and employee state insurance
scheme)

In accordance with Indian Law, eligible employees receive benefits from
Provident Fund, which is defined contribution plan. Both the employee and
employer make monthly contributions to the plan, which is administrated by the
Government authorities, each equal to the specific percentage ol employee's
basic salary. The Group has no further obligation under the plan beyond its
monthly contributions. Obligation for contributions to the plan is recognized as
anemployee benelit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred.

ii) Defined benefit plans (Gratuity)

"The Group has a defined benefit plan namely Gratuity for all its employees in the

form of Group Gratuity -cum- Life Assurance Scheme. The liability for the
defined benefit is determined on the basis of valuation made under the scheme
atyear end, which is calculated using the projected unit credit method.Gains and
losses through remeasurement of the defined benefits obligations is reflected in
the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognized in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will
not be reclassified to the statement of profitand loss. "

82 KAISER CORPORATION LTD.



KAISER CORPORATION LTD. THIRTY SECOND ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

iii) Short term benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and
are expensed as a related service provided. A liability is recognized for the amount
expected to be paid under short term cash bonus or profitsharing plans if the Group has
a present lepal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

iv) Leave encashment

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service. Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment
using the same accounting methodology as used for defined benefit retirement plans.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss in the period in
which they arise. These obligations are valued annually by independent qualified
actuaries.

v) Code on Social Security, 2020

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would
impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The
Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social
Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders
which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company and its Indian
subsidiaries will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notified
and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the
Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are
published.

3.17 Lease
Asalessee:

"The Group evaluates il an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of
Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Group uses
significant judgment in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and
the applicable discount rate.The Group determines the lease term as the non-
cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend
the lease if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered
by an option to terminate the lease il the Group is reasonably certain not to exercise that
option. In assessing whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant
facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the
option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Group
revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.The
discount rate is generally based on the borrowing rate specific to the lease being
evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.”
At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset
("ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
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3.18

3.19

3.20

lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and
low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

Asalessor:

Leases under which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as operating leases. Rental income arises from operating
leases is accounted for on straight-line basis over the lease term, and is included in
rental income in Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the increase is in line with
expected general inflation, in which case lease income is recognised based on
contractual terms. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which
they are earned.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks which are subject
toaninsignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist ofcash
and short-term deposits, as defined above, as they are considered an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for
evenls, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that
have changed the number of equity shares oulstanding, without a corresponding
change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Segment Reporting :

Based on "Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the
Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company's performance and allocates
the resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business
segments.

Segment Policies:

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting
policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company
as a whole. Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on an appropriate
basis.
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1)

2]

ii]

SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group had three primary business segments which are as follows:

Kaiser Corporation Limited
Printing of labels, pockaging moterials, Magazines and articles of stationery & consultancy service

Xicon International Limited
Turnkey Project Management and Engineering services,

Information about Primary (Product Wise) Segment:

(% an Lokhs]

Sr. No. Partlculars For the year ended | For the year énded
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1 FS_g_Enent revenne
Revenue from operations
@] Printing 2448 24.86
b Consultaney 4500 3725
¢ Infrastructure Project 191589 2.500.66
1,985.37 2,560.76
Less: Inter segment revenue {5.39) {3.24]
Net revenue 1,979.98 £,557.50
2 Result
Segment result before Finance cost and Tax
a) Printing 1.4% 121
b) Consultancy 278 1.97
¢] lntrastructure Project {53.59]) aalld
(49.37) 224.31
Letss: Finanoe costs 185.93 164.45
Exceptional Items: Loss on cessation of an Associate - .
Company
Share of profit f(loss) of associake - :
Profit / {Loss) before tax and minority interest {239.31) 59.86
Sr.No. Particulars For the yvear ended | For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Other information

Segmenl assels

a} Printing a3.12 F0.26
b) Infrastricture Project 345048 348117
3.475.60 3,511.43
Add; unallocable common assets 290.02 211.03
Total assets 3.765.62 3,722.46
Sepment liabiliies
a) Printing 543 9.07
b Infrastructure Project 2 858,35 261240
Z,B73.78 2,6£1.46
Add: unallocable common liabilities 1.06 4.32
Total liabilities 2,874,684 2,625.78
Capital Expenditure during the year
a) Printing 0.4
bl Infrastructure Project 4.08 543
Total Capital Expenditure 4.08 637
Depreciation and amortisation
a} Printing 0.29 0.49
I Infrastructure Project 1548 16.82
| Total Depreciation and amortisation 15.77 17.31

Other non-cash expenditure

E. Geographical Segments

Particulars

Geographical sepmenls

Ouiside India

Within India

Segment Revenue

G.25

1.972.21

{7.78)

[2,510.36)

Brocket [} répresent préviows vear flpures.
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31
]

ii]

Contingent liabilities [ Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March 2024
a) Contingent Liabillties
Letter of crodit
Outstanding Bank Guarantees lszued by bankers on behalf of the Compainy. a712s Ghias
67126 fhh. A5
B) Capital Commitment
Estimated amount of contractd remeining to be executed on capital account and 1500 20,95
not provided for {net of advance of Ry, 1500.000; Previous Year Bs, 20,95,314)
1500 20.95
Related party disclosures
Related party relationships:
Significant Control Heat Trace Xlgon Limited (w.etf 28 September 2019
Mr.Bhuzhanlal Arora [Managing Director]
Ms Jinal Patani (Company Secretary; Reslgned wel 5th April,
2025)
Key management personnel Ma Jinal [aln [Company Secretary: Appolnted wet Tth April,
2025
M, Hemant K Talapadarur { Directeosr
Mr, Sunil Thite {IFrector)
Mrs. Lvla Jamsheed Mehts {Chief Flnaincial Officer)
Notes:

The refationships a5 mentioned above pertain to those related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year,

Transaclions with related parties:

Dizclosure in relation to transaction with related parties

[{Amoumnt in Lakhs)

Particolars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Director's remuneration
Bhushanlal Arora

Remuneration paid to KMP other than Director
Miss |inal Patan (Compony Secretary |

Sales of poods
Heat Trace Xicon Lim ited

Purchase of goods
Heat Trace Kicon Limlted

Rent Received
Heat Trace Xicon Limited

Expense Incurred on thelr hehalf
Heat Trace Xicon Limited

Loan taken from Director
Hemant K Talapadatur

Lian repaid to Directors
Hemant & Talapadatur

Loan taken from Associates
Heat Trace Kicon Limited

Loan repald to Assoclate Company
Heat Trace Xicon Lrd.

Expenses incurred [Reimbursement of Expenses)
Heat Trace Xicon Lid
Hemant K Talapadatur

28.09

304

429

240

028

1100

TR7L

295

(028
a7e

2452

375

2005

2440

a2

18,50

10,00

362
457
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32

Halances with related parties:

(Amount in Lalkhs)

Particulars

For the year endod
31 March 2025

For the year onded
31 Murch 20024

Trade Payabie
Himat Trace Xicon Ltd - -
Unsecured Loan
Hasar Trace Xloon Lid 7476 -
Hoemant K Talapadatuir 300 2500
Other Outstanding
Sumndl Thite : [ E
Hemant K Talapadatur a.58& 1.7&
Heat Trace Kicon Ld. {264} -
Investmeant in Equity Shares
Hear Trace Xicon Limited L] 3.54
Rantiv

[Amount in Lakhs)

Particulirs For the vear ended For the year ended
A1 March 2025 31 March 2024

Corrent Assets
frtvernitorios 1. 023.59 1. 204,78
Teade Receivable 1LIT0FT 1.264.35
Cash and Cash Equivalents 554 1hi%
irther Financial assets L 7
ther Current As=sts 102367 FLEI09
Current Agsoens [A) FTEZZ5T 198,91
Corrent Liahilides
Bormowings Lasdanl 1228.0%
Trado payahie: G13.68 Tr6.63
Other Anancial liabilies B 39.02
Lher Carment Liahilities EELEE 56850
Frovisions TAR B04
Current Lishilities [R) 286931 2B21.49
Curvent Ratio (Current Assets/Corrent Liabilities) 1.1z 1,22
Delbt- Equity Ratio
Debty Eguity Capital 3.0z 1.6%
Debt Services Coverage Ratio
Mot Profit balore Tages (23931 5% HG
Depreciitien 15.77 17,31
Mt Clperati ng Incoms (223.54) TTilE
Debt Services Coverage Ratio {0.02) 016
Inventory Turnover Hatio
Inventory 1624549 1,204, 78
Turnaver La7aag Z,557.50
inventory Turnover Ratin 1.93 213
Trade recelvables Turmoever Ratis 1.69 202
[ Turmisve Saehtmrs |
Trade Payalile Turmover Ratis 0.53 1.74
{Credit Purchases /(Average Creditors)
Nel Capital Turiover ratio 3.23 3.53
{ Total Sales/ Sharcholder's Equity)
Net Profit Batic -0, 0404 21804
(Met Profit alter Tax) Turtover )
Return iin Capltal Employed
Earning before Interast and mx 9 TT 22431
Toul Equity 613,28 T25.4b
Return on Capital Emploved A05%h 30,920

{ ERIT/ Tatal Equity]
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33 Shareholding of Promoters

Share Held by Promoters at the end of the year
%% Change during the vear

Promoter Name N of Shares Yo of Total Shares
PASE Holdings Limited Fi,65004 14.95%
Amav Enterprises Limited T7.00,0HH) 14.63%
PRIT Hi-Powes Private Limiced 38,7 10K 11.16%
H L Rochat Engg Private Limited 53,53.530 10,170
Parsiana Pablications PVt Lid 23,62,000 3.40% NOGHANGE
Mxcamb Investments Limited 21,005,020 4.0
Veora Patel an,010 (10,
Jehanpir Patel 25,010 (. Dz
Lyla Mehta 3000 .07 %
Total 3,13,18570 59.53% -

34 Retivement beneflis

a] (a) Defined contribution plan
The following amaunt recognized as.an expense in Statement of proft and loss oo account of provident fund and other funds, There are no other obligations
other thah the contribution payvable te the respactive authorities.

(Amount in Lakhs}
For the year ended For the year ended
Partlcular
Lk vy 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contnibutien te provident fund and other defined contribution funds 950 T7.95

B} The Company has o defined benefit plan namely Gratuity for all its employges in the form of Group Geatuity -cum- Life Assurance Scheme The labilicy for the
defined beagfit is determined on the basis of valuatior made wider Uhe schieme a0 vear end, which I saleulated wsing the prajected unit eredit method.

Thee retirement benefic obligations recognized in the balance sheet represents the present salue of the detined benefit obligations as sdjusted for unrecognized
pastservice cost
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The fullowing table sets out the funded status of the gratuity planand the amounts recognized In the Company's linanclal scateteents as at 31 March 2025,

{ Aot in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Fartioul
T 31 March 2025 11 March 2024

Change In present value of abligation
Present value of obligation as at 1 April 3322 071
Interest cost 125 196
Service cust 217 220
Benefics pald [3.59) {3.71)
Actuirial [zzin]/loss on obligation 6,68 205
Present value of ohligation as at 31 March 094 33.22
Reconcilistion of plan assets
Mlan assets as at beginning of the year ar.2o 3474
Expected relurm on plan assets 259 237
Canrribitiong chseing the year 191 370
Adjustmaent - 01
Benefits pald [3.29) (371]
Actuarial [pains]/ Insses - -
Plam assets as af the end of the vear k1 A7.20
Armnnnt recnanised in the Ralanes Shaat
Presant value of abpligation, as at 31 March 4004 3322
Fair value of plan assets as at 31 March JH.34 7.20
Liabilities recognised [n the Balance Sheel 262 {3.98)
Expense recopnized in the statement of profit and loss
Current service cost 217 Z.20
Imterast cost .78 1m
Expected return on plan assets [L39) [2.37)
Total expense charged to profit and loss account [before tax] [A] o_t4 [LHS
Aot recorded in ther Comprehensive Income (0C1)

Remeasurement during the period due to :
Avtinarial loss S (galis) arising (fom cliadjie in Anancial assumptisng & GH 2.05
Actiirial loss .-" Lg;..llrlj Akl ng fromm r.'||.|||ge in dr|h:rg,r..|pl1|::.l*.:lﬂhp‘l (TS
Actuarial loss f [gain] arising on account of experience changes
Heturn on ]1|,:||1 ainmtit - UEL
Amount recognised in OCI [before tax] [B] 225 .25
Closing amount recognised in 0C] and profit and loss [A+B] .60 3.10
Mot lability is bifurcated as follows :
Current .53 (308
Man-curren
Nek liability 2.53 {3.98)
Actmarial assomptions used in calcalations of gratuity is as under;

A5 ar Ag at
Partl :

s ool 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
[Hscoung rote Ttk 1 %-7:3% Tha%h-7. 3%
Expecteld peturn on plan assets T -7 0% -7 B
Expocted rote of salary increase 5T 5-TH

1-10% depending on oge | 1-10%, depending on age
Abtriation rake gk B 8 o dep el
Retirement Age 58 Years 58 Years
P0G
Murtality LIC {2a06-08) Ulttmate | LIC [2006-08]) Ultimate

35 Trade Payahle Ageing schedule

{Amount in Lakhs
05 lor [ollowing periods from due date of payment
One o two Two to Three More than
Particulars e e s Yedr Years Years Three Years Total

1. MSME Ha.63 0.21 0.53 0.72 HE.09
2. Others 20033 39.49 81.70 20427 525.79

3. Disputed Dues- M5SME - - = - -

4. Disputed Dues- Others . - = . 2
Total ; 286,95 29.70 82,23 204.99 613.88
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36  Trade Receivable

Particulars

0/s for following periods from due date nfﬂafmemm"“rm

Less Than one year

One o two
year

Twao to Thiee
Years

Maoie than

Three Years Total

1. Undisputed Trade Receivable
considered good

2. Undisputed Trade Recelvable
considered Doubtful

3. Disputed Trade Receivable
comsidered good

4. Disputed Trade Receivahle
considered Doubtful [Refer Debtor
sheet)

19761

139.94

725,60

107.42 117077

Total :

197.81

139.94

725.60

107.42 1.170.77

37  Property, Plant and Equipment

Al The company malntaing the Propecty, Plant and Equipment register and details of Phvsical location dnd guantity are propecly

maintain by the company.

b} The company on an annual basls takes the physical count of the Property, Plant and Equipment and there s oo discripancy in the

Tepart.

] The Immovable property of Subsidlary company as per Propecty, Plint and Equipment schedule, kindly find the disclosure for
title deed in name of the Subsidiary company.

(Amount in Lakhs)

Sr.No Discription of item of Grass carryivgvaliie Title deeds in the name of
property COmrany
1 Leasehald Land 19.08 Xicon International Ltd,
2 Office Premises 52,77 Ricon International Lid,
3 Buildings 135.89 Kicon International Led,

d} There is no proceeding initiated or pending against the company both holding and subsidiary for holding any benami property

upder the benami transaction Act 1988

38 Invenlory

[Amount in Lakhs]

The inventory recard of bath the companies ize holding and subsidiary are properly mainmtained and guarterly physical count has
been taken by the management. There is no Discrepancy noticed lo the books of accounts and the inventory report.

The Subsidiary company | Xicon International Limited] has borrowing from bank on the hasis of security of stock and trade
recelvable , There is variance In quarterly return filed with the bank and as audited Agure of Subsidiary company.

Particulars As per Book As per Bank Difference Reason
L Stock 1023.59 1023.59 0
2 Debtors 115249 136230 [209.81) | Refer Note No. 1 (a & b)
3. |Creditors 142.25 14423 (1.98) | Refer Note No. 1 (c & d)

Note Mo, 1 ;- The variance In Debtors & Creditors as per submitied stock statement o the bank is due to the following

reasons:
Note for Debtors

i, Provision for ECL Ry, 209.25 [Less in Books value)
h. Warks Contract Tax [GST) - Rs.0.56

Note for Creditors

o Note Noo 17 - Pavment o creditor is Bs, 198,
d. Mate Mo, 17 - Trads Payable includes Creditors for Commisslon, Expenses, Contractors, Sub-contractors, Professional,
Consumahles, Rent, Transporters & Others:
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39  Financial instruments- Fair values and risk management

The carrving value and fair value of fimancial instruments by categories as of March 21, 2025 are as follows -
{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars At amortised | At fairvalue | At fair value Total Total fair value
costs through profit | through OCK carrying
amd loss value
Assets
Investments 0.13 - 119 1.32 1.32
Trade receivalifos 1170.,77 . - 1, 17077 117077
Cashand cazh equivalents 5.54 - . 5.54 554
Bank balances other than above 2158 215 215
Other current financial assets = = : . =
1,178.59 = 112 1L17%.78 1L,179.78
Liabilities
MNom-current borrowings . - -
Current borrowings 105461 - - 1E054.461 185461
"T'rade payables f13.88 - - Gl3.88 h13.88
{ther current financial liabilities 5691 - - 56,91 5691
2.525.40 = - 2.525.40 252540

Thes carrying value and fir value of financial instruments by catepories as of March 21, 2024 are a5 follows -
[(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Al amortised | At fairvalue | At i valoe Total Total fair value
costs through profit | through 0C1 CAFTYing
and loss value
Assels
Invastments 011 - 354 366 366
Trade receivables 126435 . : 1,264.35 1.264.35
Cash and cash equivalents 1669 - - 16,649 16.69

Bank balances othet than above 56.15 56,15 56.15
Current Lixing -
Other non-current lnanckil assets -

Other current finandal sssets - - - - -
1,337.30 - 354 1.340.85 1,340.85

Liabilities

Non-current harrowings - - - - -

Current borrowings 122889 . . 122889 1,228,849

Trade payakles 77663 - - TThaA3 77663

Uther current financial liabilities 3902 - - 3902 39.02
2,044.55 - = 204555 2,044.55

40 Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are ohservable for the asset or lability,
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
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The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities as of 315t March 2025 and 31st March 2024

[Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

Asof3l
March 2025

Fair value measurement at end of the

Level 1

Level 2 Level 3

a) Assets measured at FYOCI
Unquoted investments
Investment in equity instruments of other entities

a) Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Quoted investments
Investment in equity instruments of other entities

b) Assets measured at FVTPL
Unguoted investments
Investment in equity instruments of other entities

119

013

0.13

g 119

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

Asof3l
March 2024

Fair value measurement at end of the

Level 1

Level 2 Level 3

a) Assets measured at FVOCI
Ungquoted investments
fnvestment in eguity instruments of other entities

a) Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Quoted investments
Investment in equity instruments of other entities

Iv) Assels measured at FVTPL
Unguoted investments
Investment in equity instruments of other entities

011

0.11

- 3.54

41

Leases

a)  Group as Lessor (In case of Xicon International Ltd.)
The company has given Premises on Leave & License basis which is renewable on mutual basis.
The amount of minimum lease income with respect to operating lease recognized in the
statement of profit and loss for this year is Rs. 2.4 Lakhs (31 March 2024: ’s.2.4 Lakhs).

42  Earnings Per Share
{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Asat daat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Net profit / (loss) after tax available for (107.14) 32.21
equity share holders for basic and diluted

earning per share

Weighted average number of equity shares 5,26,21,020 5,26,21,020
Face value of share (Rs.) 1.00 1.00
Basic and diluted earnings per share [Rs.) {0.20) 0.06
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44

Critical accounting judgements and sources of estimation uncertainties

"The preparation of the financial statements requires the management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities and the accompanying disclosures including the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a ongoing basis.They are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future
periodsif the revision affects both currentand future periods.”

Detailed information about each of these estimates, assumptions and judgements is included in
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line
item of financial statements. However, the following are the key assumptions and other key
sources of estimation of uncertainty concerning the future, at the end of the reporting year that
may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial years.

(i) Usefullives of property, plantand equipment:

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plantand equipment at the
end of each reporting year. The linancial effect of this reassessment, assuming the assets
are held until the end of their estimated useful lives, is an increase/decrease the
depreciation expense in the current financial year and future years.

(ii) Fairvalue measurements and valuation processes:

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inpuls are not
available, the Company uses appropiate valuation techniques for valuation. Their fair
value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF)
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair value.

(iii) Estimationofdefined benefitobligation:

The cost of defined benefits plan including other post employment benefits and the
present value of such obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation inveolves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in
the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All the assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

iv)] Impairmentofnon-finanical assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Ifany indication exists, or when annual impairment testing foran
asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
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45

46

47

48

cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

v) Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Company used judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
Company'’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
atthe end of each reporting period.

vi) Lease

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease,
together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably
certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is
reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has several lease contracts that
include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew or terminate
the lease. It considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to
exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew
orto terminate.

Disclosure pursuantto Ind AS-11"Construction Contracts’ relating to subsidiary company.

{Amount in Lakhs) (Amount in Lakhs)

A For the year ended For the vear ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Details of contract revenue

Contract revenue recognised during the vear 1,686.87 38979
Aggregate amount of contract cost recognised during the year 1441149 36398
Amount recelved for contracts in progress 1,353.09 36086
Retention morey for contracts in progress R 218
Gross amount due from customers for contract work [asset) 533.79 092

Balances of certain trade receivables, trade payables and other financial assets are subject to
confirmation / reconciliation, if any. The management does not expect any material difference
affecting the financial statements on such reconciliation / adjustments.

In the opinion of management, trade receivables, loans and other financial assets have a value
on realisation in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are
stated in the balance sheet. The provision for depreciation and all known liabilities is adequate
and notin excess of the amount reasonably stated.

Code on Social Security, 2020:

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the
contributions by the Company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour
and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13,
2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by
the Ministry. The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are
notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the
Code becomes ellective and the related rules to determine the financial impactare published.
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the yvear ended 31st March 2025

49 Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities and
financial assets arising from financing activities:
(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat Non-cash change As at
31 March 2024 | Acguisition / (Repayment) |  Foreign exchange | Transaction | 31 March 2025
movement cosls
Short termhareowings 1,228.849 625.72 - - 185461
50 Managementhas conducted the physical verification of Inventories ason 5 April 2025 and since
there is no receipt & issues during the period 1 April 2025 to 5 April 2025, the inventories held
on 5 April 2025 is having the same value as on 31 March 2025.
51 The company [ Holding and subsidiary) has not done any transaction with companies struck off
undersection 248 Companies Act 2013.
52 The charge on asset that has to be registered with ROC has been registered on time as inform by
management.
53  As per the management and those charge with the Goverance has given declaration that the
company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial instutuion or other lender.
54  Eventsafter the end ofthe reporting date
No subsequent event has been observed which may require any adjustment to the statement of
financial position.
55  "Company hasduring the year written back export commission payable to REPL, UK amounting
to USD 1,83,560 (equivalentINR1,57,09,322/-). *
While the transaction of export commission payable has contractual and commercial substance
ofand accordingly, it was recorded in FY 2023-24. However, Authorised Dealer (Bank of India)
has refused to process the remittance citing the reason that there is no direct export by the
Company has accordingly informed REPL, UK about the lack of documentation in terms of
Foreign Exchange Management Act{FEMA) provisions and hence its inability to make
remittance to which REPL has agreed and has waived its export commission dues.
56 Amounts for the year ended and as at 31 March 2025 were audited by auditors Shabbir & Rita
Associates LLPE
57  TheFiguresofthe previous year have been regrouped, whenever necessary to conform with the
current year's presentations.
SignaturestoNotes1to57
For SHARBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Kaiser Corporation Limited
FIRM'S REG. ND. 109420W
SHABBIR 5 BAGASRAWALA Bhushanlal Arora Rajendra Ramchandra Vaze
PFARTNER Managing Director Birector
MEMBERSHIP NO. 039865 DIN No. 00416032 DIN No. 02244651
Jimal fain Lyla Jamsheed Mehta
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date ; 30th May 2025 Membership No, AS9185
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of M /s Kaiser Corporation
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of
Profitand Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) and the Cash Flow Statement and Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best ol our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit
and its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and
we have [ulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficientand appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
ourauditof the IND A5 financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide aseparate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:
INFORMATION OTHER THAN FINANCIALSTATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board'’s Report including Annexures to
Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement ol this
otherinformation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
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Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
Other Comprehensive Income cash flows and changes in Equity ofthe Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively lor ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud orerror.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also
responsible for overseeing the Company's [inancial reporting process.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our objectives are to obltain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements asa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Sas will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as [raud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinien on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
elfectiveness ol such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
evenlts or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
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disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to conlinue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the [inancial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner thatachieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in Financial Statement that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions ol a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial
Statement may be influence. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factorsin L. Planning
the scope of our Audit work and in evaluating the result of our work and 11. To evaluate the effect ofany
identified misstatement in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant defliciencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements ol the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHERLEGALAND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the Annexure A statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extentapplicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ol our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so faras itappears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive
Income and the Cash Flow Statement and Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
inagreement with the books ofaccount.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 including Ind AS;

e) On the basis of the written representations received [rom the directors as on March 31,
2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as

on March 31, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.
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)

g)

h)

)

The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph (b) above paragraph (i)([) below on reporting
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Reportin Annexure B

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of Section 197{16) of the Act, as amended:

Inouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the managerial remuneration paid or provided for by the company during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197(16) of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the bestof our information and according to the explanations given to us:

he Company does not have any pending litigations which would have impact on its
financial positioninits Standalone Financial Statements.

The Company has did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, ,no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneliciaries”) by or on behall of the Company
or provide any puarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company [rom any persons or entities, including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or investin
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalfl of the Funding Parties or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneliciaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule
11(e) contain any material mis-statement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks the company has used such
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
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recording audit trail (edit log) [acility and the same has been operated throughout the
year for all transactions recorded in the software and the audit trail feature has not been
tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved as per the proviso to Rule 3(1) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2024 reporting under
Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014.

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's RegistrationNo. 109420W

Shabbir Sbagasrawala

Partner

Membership No. 039865
UDIN: 25039865BMIKNH2823
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 30/05/2025
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"ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 underthe heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our
report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025, we
report the following:

1) a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plantand Equipment;

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b)  The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
annually, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company
and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, the Property, Plant and Equipment
has been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies between the books records and the Property, Plant and Equipment have
been noticed.

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us,
the company does not have any immovable properties and hence clause 3(i)(c) of this
order is notapplicable to the company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us
no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
Benami property under the "Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules
made thereunder.

2) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us the inventory has been
physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable. According to the information and
explanations given to us and as examined by us, no material discrepancies of 10% or
more in the aggregate for each class of inventory was noticed on physical verification of
stocks by the management as compared to book records on such verification.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores,
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets atany point of time during and hence clause 2 (ii}(b) of this order is notapplicable
to the company.

3) According to information and explanation given to us and the records examined by us the
company has not made investments in nor provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties
covered in the register required under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (iii) (a) to (f) of the order is not applicable.

4) According to information and explanation given to us and the records examined by us the
company has neither made any investments nor has it given loans or provided any guarantee or
security as specified under section 185 of the Companies Act,2013 ("the Act”) and the company
has provided puarantee in respect ol the loan taken by the subsidiary company. Further in our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
loans, investments, puarantees, and security.
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5) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us, the company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to
be deposits from the publicand accordingly paragraph 3 (v) of the order is notapplicable.

6) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried
on by the company.

7] (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise,
Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more
than six months from the date on when they become payable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the above were inarrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more
than six months from the date on when they become payable.

g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us, there are no such transactions which are not recorded in the books of account
and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

9) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the
records examined by us, the Company has no borrowings [rom banks, financial
institution, government or by way of debenture. Accordingly para 3(ix)(a) to (f) is not
applicable to the company.

10) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public
offer or further public offer including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3 (x) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made private
placement of shares or debenture during the year and hence compliance with the
requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 does notarise.

11) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, we report that no fraud by the Company or
on the company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no report under sub-5Section {12) of Section
143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 ol Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central
Government.

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no whistle-blower complaints has been

103. KAISER CORPORATION LTD.



KAISER CORPORATION LTD. THIRTY SECOND ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

received during the year by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi)(c) of the order
is notapplicable.

12)  Accordingtothe information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company
and accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the order is notapplicable to the Company.

13)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of the Act. Where applicable, the details of such transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14)  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company the company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature ofits business.

(b)  The reports on the Internal Auditor of the company for the period under audit has been
considered and taken into consideration. During the period under Audit no adverse
remark were found in the reportofthe Internal Auditor.

15)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the company has not entered into non- cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the order is
notapplicable.

16) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company is not required to be registered
under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934,

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the Company has not conducted any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of
Registration (COR) [rom the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the Company, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined under the Regulations by the Reserve Bank of
India.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has no CIC as part of the Group

17)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the Financial Year and in
the immediately preceding financial year.

18)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, there has not been any resignation of the statutoery auditors during the
year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

19)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realization of [nancial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans, we are of opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheetas and when they [all due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
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We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any puarantee norany assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

20)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, section 135 of the Companies Act is not applicable to the company,
accordingly reporting under clause (xx) of the orderis notapplicable.

21)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, there have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective
auditors in the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included
in the consolidated financial statements.

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATESLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's RegistrationNo. 109420W

Shabbir Sbagasrawala

Partner

Membership No. 039865
UDIN: 25039865BMIKNH2823
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 30/05/2025
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ANNEXUREB
REPORT ON INTERNAL FINANCIALCONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of The
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M /s Kaiser Corporation
Limited ("the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the IND AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSILILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial

Reporting issued, by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company'’s policies, the saleguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over linancial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ol India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over [inancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting A company’s internal financial
control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
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1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary o permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations ol management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting Because of the inherent
limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future period are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over [inancial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATESLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's RegistrationNo. 109420W

Shabbir § Bagasrawala

Partner

Membership No. 039865
UDIN: 25039865BMIKNH2823
Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date:30/05/2025
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCHI, 2025

(Ra in fakds)

Nihe Anoat An at
" 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
ASKETS
Mon Curment Assets
[Mroperty, Plant and Eguipment 2 119 047
Fimancial Asscts
Imvestmenis 3 44229 455319
Deherred Tax Acsel 4 032 057
Total MNon Comrent Assets 26300 60,23
Cument Assots
Financial Asscis
Trade Beceivable 5 2014 670
Cash and Cash Equivalents f 433 1543
Chbwer Clirrend Azl 7 R 7.5
Total Current Assets 3248 29.97
TOTAL ASSETS AU5A7 L e ]
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity sharg capital B 52602 SR02
Other gquity ] i47.491) (di w3
Tatal Equity 48408 fen1e
Liabilities
Corrent Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 10 el 207
Oither timancial fiabilibies 11 453 442
Chbwer Current Liabilities 12 259 1719
Provisuns 13 |45 1.73
Total Current Liabilities 11.44 11.02
Teotal Liakilities 11.34 1102
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 19547 A0
Summary of significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statemients

As per our report of even date attached

For Shabbir & Kita Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reg No, 1094200

Shabbir 5 Bagasrawala
Pariner
Membership Mo, D9E6S

Flace : Mumbai
Date ; 30.05.3025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directoos of
Kaiser Corporation Limited

Bhushanlal Arora Rajendra Hamchandra Yaze
Managing Director Director

DM Ne, 00416032 DM Mo, 02284651

Jinal Jain Lyla Jamsheed Mehta
Company Secrelary Chief Financial Officer
Melnl:zlrﬁhlp N AS91RS
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025

(M i lukles)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particula Mot
il 4o 31032025 31032024

Income from operations

Eovenue fmon |1|:||.-r.1.li|1nr. 14 (P L] R111

Chher Income (5] 30T 25
Total Ineime from operations 7335 ikl
Expenses

Prirchase of Stock in Trade o 14,28 19,39

Emplotver Benelit Bxpense Ir ag.nl JLE3

Finamey Lot 14 -

'I'Jq._-pmr.i.'ltin:m & Amoriisation F.\rulnw 19 0,24 049

{Mher EXPERSCS il 13,54 1533
Total expenses b A5 A7
Frofit /| Lass | before exoeptinnal item and tax .61 5,58
Exceptivnal Ttem - -
Frofit /| Loss ) before tas 6,51 5577
Tax expenses

Less:- Curresd Tox 106 057

Add(Lessy- Esrlier Year Tax (007 (0.35)

Add/(Lessy- Deferred Tax Assel [/ (Liability) (.05 (0335

Add it Lessy blat Credit {033 (0,347
Total Tax expenses .71 [l
Prodit /| Lass | after tas from continuing eperatism &9 556
Other l'_'mnpl\phml.ivg Income net of taxes (OCT)
1h Therme thit will not be reclassified 1o Profitand Loss (net of tax) - =
al fh.'mp‘l'u irorevaluation g.l_lrpl an - -
by Eemeasuromwnt of the defined benefit gaind(l.oss) {1.24) 042
) Equity Instrumient through ofher comprehensive imcoms - -
d} Fair Valoe chamjes relatimg to own credit risk - -
] arther - -
o e rolating to itvms tha) will oot be reclassifiod o profit or hes = 007
Orther comprrehensive ncame after by L2} 0.35
Total Comprehienstve Income'iLoss) for the year (Comprising Frofit and Crther aE S
Comprehensive Income for the Yeard . .
Earnings Per Equity bShare of Rs. 1 each
Basic o2 011
[ilutesd LHXA ) s {REI1
Summary of significanl acoounting palicies 1

Ad per our repurt of even date sttached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Kaiser Corporation Limited

For Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP
Chartered Accomntants
Firm’s Rueg. Ma, TR4200W

Shabbir 5 Bagasrawala Bhushanlal Arora Hajendra Ramchandra Vace
Fartner Managing Director Diirector

Mlembership Mo, 039865 AN M, D04 16032 DN Mo, 02244651

Mace : Mumbai Jinal Jain Lyla Jamsheed Mekta

Date 1 J0.05.2025 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Membership No, ASH165
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR TIHE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCIH 2025

(Hs. i Linkirs)
_ Tor the vear ended Far the year ended
iy Farteniie 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Priecefil Dofore fax LE ] AR
Adjustmeints -
Dirprecintion and amaortisation expense o9 (L2
Intere=t expenses - -
(eain ) Lemss om Fair Yalse of Invesumenis rhh:ur_!w 'rofit or Loss (-5 fr sl 1
Infenesd an income Lax refund [N L} FIEEEH
Excoss provision writken Sack L7 =
Tiegarsd o Flsued Doposits {0} LS
Loy Term Laain on sale of shares LMY L0
Dividend (R K] {iL0aj
Ciperating profit before working capital changes fdb 158
Belrsemients in working capltal;
Incremse Decranse) in trade payobies avd otber Biaklities {007 14
Increasef Decrease) in other mancisl habilitses {24 4z
Diecreasef{ Increas ) in trade and other receivables | 1L56) 1144
Caeh E,u.:ﬂvlrahrd from | fueed Ink operations [ 15,89
[leect bwes puaked (et of nefaresdn) {105 {206}
MWET CASH FROM [{USED INI OPERATING ACTIVITIES LA {120 1549
" CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Paopchase of ety I’\lu|‘|l i |-a[u||'||'|u'-nr = FUCE
Inteswsl fedivied nil mz
Dividind recenoed [ Xili] ooo
Investment in Equity Shares 1003 JLLS)
Invesiment made in Subsidiary li.'-:mp.m.l.l.'n (A {250
Prodooseds o Saliy Redem plion of I'r.;|u|1}' Invesinmenis g 002
MNET CASH (USELD IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES ) {2941 13341
c CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Shurt term bormowings -
Interasl vnporses =
NET CASH FROM /{USED INI FINANCING ACTIVITIES (%] - -
(R WIL] T
MET INCREASE (DECREASE] IN CASH AND CASH BQUIVALENTS i AR
b el ol equivalent ot begrinming of year 1543 537
Cash and vush equivalent at end of year 433 1543
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cish-gr-harnl ni4 026
Halanas with banks
= in eurrent acomusts 118 ER |
-in Frxed Depisdts - 1125
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQLIVALINTS 4133 15.43
Summary of significant sccounting, policies 1
Tha accomm panyineg navhes fomim s indeipeol part of the stndalome financial statermengs
Nuotes:
L AL Higures in bracket ans st o,
z Thie atandadome casly ey datnments has been pregsred amdes indineet method g8 per Bl AS 7 StGemend of Cash Flows®

Ap por our repart of sven date atlached

Fur Shabbir & Rita Associntes LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Keg. Now 1091200

Shabbir % Bagasrawala
Partner
Membership N, DFIEST

Tlace © M frai
Dhate © 300520125

Fur and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of

Kaiser Corporation Limifed

Bhushanlal Arora
Mamaging L ector
DN Mo, 00416032

linal Jain
Company Secretary
Membership Mo, AFVIES

Ra.jpndr.l Ramchandra Vaze
Direclur
DM Mo, 02244651

Lyla [amaheed NWehia
Chiel Financial Officer
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Statement af changes in equity for be year ended 31 March 3005

i

Cguity share capital

£ 4. o lakint

Parliguslars umber Ampmnt in s,
Balarce as al 31 March 2033 5,26, 21,021 320012
Changes inequity shame capizal dunng the year - -
Balaivce as-al X1 March Hidd 5,260,210, 020 526,013
L hanges Inesquity share capital during the year - -
Balaizes a5 at 31 March 335 5,26.21.000 524412
Edfher 'N{I-I-"'r'

; ry . S — N i _— IRz, It Lakfis )

Particulars llnr:mveiﬁnqﬂnl Itemms nd OC Tatal

Capital ressrve Security prentium | Retained earnings Koimeasarement af nel
delind henedin
liabdlityiaseed
Halance 25 at 31 March 20123 1d1Th T (TAH5) A e [R2.74l
PrmfitLavsey b Bl preriosd - g 568 1 = 558
Lae=s: LCrrent yyar Tux [CEEH - [TL54)
Lisst: Tovhess ool Farkier yeni S = 1125 _' - 0325
Lepen; lan crodit Enbilkemson) - - {120 030
Aetuarial gain on defined berfis plan, net ol Lix - = o B 033
LEE Ma ol fall. 205 .42 1443}

“Prodit for 1he porbod : : Hl | = Al
Less: Carront Year T - - (111 - i
Add: Tases of Earlier yeur 0407 | - nor
Al Mt cradil Enbit lemend - = .31 - s
Actuarial gain on defmed berefits plan, net of 1ax * . = (1.24) )
Halance as at 31 Mareh 2025 144 .0 {62205 142 1AL H)
Sammary of signidlcan agorurdsng policies 1

Thee accontipanying naled Parer an idepral part of e srandalocs finmscial Slaiemers

A pser v ot o oven ke aitached

For Shabbic & Rila Aseociates L1
Chartered Acoountants
Firm’s Heg. Mo, 14H20W

Shabbir 5 Bagastawala
Fartmer
Membemship Ma, 1309065

Flace ; Mundrai
Dhabe - 50052025

Far anad o behald af the Board of Directors of
Kabser Carpyration Limited

Bhushsilal Atora
Managing Director
DN Mo L6002

Rajemdia Ramchandss Ve
Director
DN Mo, N2288651

Jinal Jaim Lyla lamsheed Mehls
Company Secretary Chief Financlal (ficer
Membership Moo AS91H5
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Motes Forming Part of Standalone Financial Statements for the yvear ended 31st March 2025

Mobe 3: Investmenls

(T, in lakbs)

M al Mlaich 312025

As at 31032024

Tarticolars Maid lue i i
artien MENPVENE | o, of St | B, v b N of Shanes L etk
In Equity Instruments Shares = Guoded, fully pald up
Tata Seeel Lid He 1 each .1} 010 &l 0,007
DF Utilities Lbd. Bx 10 each 1= o2 [ a.o2
TWIE Broadcast Lid. Bs. 1D aach kel . a2 n.a
Mtk T8 Bodia & Invosiments Lid e, Sach 17 oA
Mote: TVIS Droadeast L merged with Metwark 18 Media &
Imvestments and 17 sharss wend seceived af Mietwork 18 Media
& Irwoatrnemits agaimet 30 shares of TV 14 Broadeast Lid,
In Esqmity Instruments Shares - Unguoted
Subsidiaries (at cosd or deemed oosi)
Nicon Intermabional Limiged Es Wipach | 7.0, (0 446216 7O, £ £551. 114
Duiirted
Amnﬂaw bork valuas 1 i3 1348 01l
Appregale marked valee 0 18 13 {18 )
Unguoted
Apprregmih carrying value -
VARG IO (s al 31 March 3024: 17,084,000, | Ecanty shores of Ra 10
wach Fullgr |'I.l||:| up in Nicon Intermational Limbted
Total 4.2y 254,14
Mok 4: Deferred Tax Assel
ARz, in Lol
Park et An af March A sl March
X205 312024
Dreterrvd Tax Asets 052 057
Met Deforred Tax Ascol 052 A7
MNote 5: Trade Receivables s, in lukhs)
. As al Manch As al March
e 31,2028 st,2024
Secid ctrshdered Good - -
Unecured Considened Goad ** 2. 14 &,
Total 20,04 &,
** Kindly refer to note te accounts piaint no 31 "Trade receivable” for ageing
Mot f: Cash and Cash Equivalents N, L)
Farbicalite Ag al March As at March
3125 31,2024
{Caah oo hand 0.4 01,24
Balances with banks 1
In corrent sccouni= 478 41
o &
In duposic accounts & 11.25
.18 1514
Tubal 4.3 1543
Mote 7: Dther Corrent Assets %5, in lokds)
Ar at March Ar at March
i
Partioulirs 312025 312020
Advancr For E:n:ptm - 0.00
Prepaid Coratudty' .07 am
MAT Cradil Entithement 1.32 (1,58
TS 450 3
Prepaid Exponse 0z .12
Tolal 201 7.5
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Notes Forming Part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Murte K Eqully Share Capital { R, i lakdrs |
As at March As at March
Particulars
31,2025 312024
Authorised Share Capital
TOH3 AN, TR ]"_|.|:n'|.1.' shares of He. 1)~ ach 1,003,y L.d.on
(Previoas Year 100,000,000 Fouity shares of He. 1/~ each)
Issued, Subseribed and Pald ap
5,26, 21,000 Eaquily shiares of Be. 1i-aach 526.21 521
(Treviouws Year 52,621,020 BEquity shares of Res 1= each)
fissss Call i A rrasars [T 010
52602 S0
Thae recomciliation of the number of shanes outstanding 15 set out below:
{ B, o feakdes
As at March As al March
31,2025 31,2024

Particulars

i, of Shares)

(N, af Shares)

Exqquity Shanes at the beginning of the vear

526,211,020 5.2p21.020
Additicos during the yvear B R
El:lniljr Shares at the end of the year
520,211,020 F.26,21,020
The details of Sharcholders holding mone than 5% shares:
i ci‘l an
ame of I a d As at March 31,2025 A at Marvch 31,2024 e ke
No. of Shares i L Mo, of Shares
Fead w holding gy “n holding
M'ASK Holdings Limited TH A5, 000 T4.H5 FTEAE.DI] [4.495"% Mo {fhangc.-
Amay Enterprises Limited T, 00,0 143 F700, 000 [4.63% Wo Change
PRIT Hi-Power Privale Limited B4, 71,000 11, 1r% 54,7 1,000 11 16% Mo Change
H L Rochat Engyg Private Limbed E3.54.50) 10.15% 5353530 18 el Mo Chuirige
1 orance investments and Trading Limited drr 29,535 TN 1,05.29.543 L A1, 73
MNote & Other equily {Rs. b liakirs)
i As at March As at March
g 31,2025 31,200
Capital Reserve
Caprital Besrve 14,03 1403
Clhosing Balance 14.03 14413
Security Premium
Serurity Prenyiam 7.1 2in
Closmg Balance 701 7.m
Retained carning {67.87) {7374
Diher Comprehensive Income
Remwasanements of the nel detined bemefit Plams (1,245 (L35
| grsm: Taxes of earlier yoar
TLess: Mat Credit Entitlerment - .
Adddl: Current Year protliiLoss) LR 556
(BE02) IB7AT)
Taotal 141,96} 144,530
Muote 1k Trade Payables
(Ra, {i fakdts)
Particulars As at March As al March
31,2025 31,2024
Divess of mucny and small enterprises 0546 057
Other trade pavables 2.2 131
Tovtad k%) 2.07

Lo K.‘i:l'!l‘."? reder tis mote Lo accounis Fu.i.rl.‘t o 30 "Trade Pﬂ.}-u]:l!" for aﬁﬁng
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Notes Forming Part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

{ip. The amount due o Microe and Small Enterprises as defined i the " The Micr, Small and Medium Enterprises Lievelopment Ao, 2006 has been determined to
the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of intormatiom collected by the Management.

(Rs. dn fakdis
As at March Aw at March
Farticula
S 31,2025 31,2024
[ii) The disclosures relating to Micro and S5mall Enterprises. are as undert o -
[a) The 1_'|ri,|:u:i;|_1.1'| amaurt lrm.ﬁn,'l,nﬁ_ ||n:p.'-ti;| foi -:-up:p[lvr a=al the end of the .}cl:uunl'i:n'.: VR .56 0n.a7
|b) Thit interest due thereon remaining unpaid o supplier as &t the end of the accounting year - -
{¢) Thee nmasunt o mterest paid inbenns of Secticen 16, along with the smount of payment made to the Supphes beyond Hie
.|'F|i11|rr|lr.~d dq}- dlll‘ll‘lﬁ thus veLr - -
[d} The amount of inlerest doe and pavable for the vear
|e} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accoumting year . 1.on
1£} The amount of further interest due and payvable even in the - -
Mote 11: Other Financlal Liabdlities { R an likhs)
As at March As at March
Particul
e 31,3025 31,2024
Fair valoe of finandal guarandee obligation Ang 255
[nterest Arccraed and due £ 1.00
Efmployiee dugs payabhe 154 1.33
Tokal Lad .82
Mote 12 Other Current Linbilities (R, gy ks )
As al March Ag al March
Particula
il 31,2025 31,2024
Statutery Does Payable .54 2.29
Total L5% 2.29
MNote 13 Provisions {Rs dn fakfes)
As at March Arat March
Farticulars
A 31,2025 31,2004
Uhtstanding Fxpense Pavable hx o1y
Lessate emeashment naz 041
Provisikmn for Tay (AY 2025-26) .04 .54
Tolal 15 1.73
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Notes Forming Part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 14: Revenue from Operations {Ra. it lakhs)
P Year ended Year ended
Particulars
315t March, 2025 Fst March, 2024
Sale of products 24.44 2286
Sale of Services 450 37.25
Total G943 6011
Mote 15: Other Income {Ks. in Inkies)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
315t March, 2025 F1st March, 2024
Interest income 011 01z
Fair Value Gaurantes Income 259 239
Long Term Capital Gain on Shares 0.00 0.00
Dividend Q.00 2.00
Balance Written Off L7
Other Income L.00 .
Total 3.77 251
Maote 16: Purchase of Stock In trade (Ra. in fokfs)
: Year ended Year ended
Particulars
st March, 2025 st March, 2024
Add: Purchases 14.28 11.39
Tolal 1428 11.349
Note 17: Employee benefits expenses { Bs. in lakds)
Particul Year ended Year ended
articulars
' 3F1st March, 2025 315t March, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 35,64 2970
Contribution to Provident Fund and other Funds 232 2.00
Staff walfare Expenses 0.0 014
Total 36.01 31.83
Mote 18: Finance Cost iRs. in lakis)
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

Ist March, 2025

Interest Expenses

315t March, 2024

Total -
MNote 19: Depreciation and Amortisation Expense i Hs. i fakisd
Particul Year ended Year ended

articulars
315t March, 2025 J1st March, 2024

Depreciation 029 (149
Amaortisation -

Total 03w (.44
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Moles Forming Part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 20; Other Expenses {Ba. it lakhis)
; Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31st March, 2025 31t March, 2024
{artage .08 (.14
Repairs and mamtainence - others 0.20 031
Rates and taxes 5.22 4.90
Communication expenses 0.04 0.0&
Travellmg ond conveyance 017 0:27
Printing and stationery 0.0% .08
Advertising and sales promotion 1.08 101
Bank charges 0.0 0.01
Legal and professional fees 5.40 5.13
Payment to auditor
- Audit Fees .50 .80
- Ohers 0.47 040
Miscellaneous expenses 0.37 0.22
Total 13.56 13.33
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Notes Forming Part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

1

2.01

2.02

2.03

CORPORATE INFORMATION

"Kaiser Corporation Limited (""the Company™) is engaged in the business of ""Printing of
labels and cartons, Mapgazines and Articles of Stationery™ in India. The Company was
incorporated on 20 September 1993, having its registered office at Unit no-283-287 second
floor F Wing Solaris-1 saki vihar road Andheri east Mumbai .The Company has one subsidiary
namely, Xicon International Limited which is engaged in offering Turnkey Project Management
and Engineering services. These Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March
2025 are approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the company in their meeting held
on 30th May 2025.”

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION
Basis of preparation of financial statements

The standalone [inancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis and on the basis of
accounting principle of a poing concern in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The Ind AS are presented under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amend ments Rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee and all values are stated in Rs. Lakhs or
decimal thereof, except where otherwise indicated. Wherever the amount represents 0’ (zero),
value construes less than Rupees five hundred.

Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of [inancial statements in conformity of Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application ofaccounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assels and contingent
liabilities at the date of financial statements, income and expenses during the year. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in future periods which are affected.

Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates and assumption
having the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are:

Valuation of financial instruments

Usefullife of property, plantand equipment
Actuarial gain floss on employee benefit plans
Provisions

Currentversus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classilication. An assetis treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized orintended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
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2.04

3.01

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assetsare classified as non-current.
Aliability is current when:
- Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- Itis held primarily for the purpose oftrading

Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Recent accounting pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from 01 April 2020.

Other Changesto Ind AS

Following changes of Ind AS have also become applicable from financial year beginning 1 April
2019. However, the adoption of these changes does not have any impact on the financial
statements as there are no transactions covered under theseamendments:

Appendix Cto Ind A5 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Amendments to Ind AS 109: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
Amendmentto Ind AS 19 - planamendment, curtailment or settlement
Amendmentsto Ind AS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures

Amendments to Ind AS 103: Party to a Joint Arrangements obtains control of a business thatisa
Joint Operation

Amendments to Ind AS 111: joint Arrangements
AmendmentstoInd AS12 Income Taxes

Amendments to Ind AS 23: Borrowing Costs
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Property, plantand equipment:

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and where
applicable accumulated impairment losses. Property, plant and equipment cost include
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of shelf-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour and any other costs directly
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attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased
software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of
thatequipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment

Subsequent Cost

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied with
these will low to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is de-recognized and charped to the statement of Profit and Loss. All other costs
arerecognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss as and when incurred.

Depreciation:

Depreciation on property plant & equipments is calculated on written down method over the
useful life as specified by Schedule 1 to the Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed ateach financial year end and adjusted prospectively, ifappropriate.

Derecognition ofassets

An item of property plant & equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected [rom its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the income
statement when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, are measured
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the intangible assel.

Subsequentexpenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands, are recognized in profitor loss asincurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives:

Asset class Useful life as per management Amortisation method

Computer software b years Amortisation on written down value basis

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted ifappropriate.

Derecognition of assets

An item ol intangible asset and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the income statement when the asset is
derecognized.
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3.04

3.05

3.06

Revenue recognition:

Revenue from contracts with customer is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with Customers” provides a control-based revenue
recognition model and provides a five step application approach to be followed for revenue
recognition.

A) Identify the contract{s) with customer;

B) Identify the performance obligations;

C) Determine the transaction price;

D) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;
E) Recognise revenue when or as an entity satisfies performance obligation.
Revenue from operations:

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised net of indirect taxes.
Consultancy income

Revenue from consultancy income is recognised over a period of time.
Otherincome:

Interestincome

Under Ind AS109, Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to
the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial
assets classified as measured at fair value through Profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial guarantee income

Financial guarantee income is recognised on straight line basis over period of guarantee.

Inventories:

i) Inventories are valued at weighted average method or net realizable value whichever is
lower. Obsolete, defective and unserviceable stocks are provided for, whenever
required.

i) Work in process includes material cost, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in

bringing them to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Retirementbenefits:
i) Defined contribution plan (Provident Fund):

In accordance with Indian Law, eligible employees receive benefits from Provident
Fund, which is defined contribution plan. Both the employee and employer make
monthly contributions to the plan, which is administrated by the Gowvernment
authorities, each equal to the specific percentage of employee's basic salary. The
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b)

d)

Company has no further obligation under the plan beyond its monthly contributions.
Obligation for contributions to the plan is recognized as an employee benefit expense in
the Statement of Profitand Loss when incurred.

Defined benefit plans:
Gratuity

“The Company has a defined benefit plan namely Gratuity for all its employees in the
form of Group Gratuity -cum- Life Assurance Scheme. The liability for the defined benefit
is determined on the basis of valuation made under the scheme at year end, which is
calculated using the projected unit credit method.Gains and losses through
remeasurement of the defined benefits obligations is reflected in the balance sheet with
acharge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to the statement of profit
and loss."

Short term benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and
are expensed as a related service provided. A liability is recognized for the amount
expected to be paid under short term cash bonus or profit sharing plans if the Company
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Leave encashment

The employees of the Company are entitled to leave as per the leave policy of the
Company. The liability in respect of unutilized leave balances is provided at the end of
year and charged to the statement of profitand loss.

Code on Social Security, 2020

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would
impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The
Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on 5Social
Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders
which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company and its Indian
subsidiaries will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notified
and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the
Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are
published.

3.07 Accounting for taxes onincome:

i)

Currentincome tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company operates and generates
taxable income.

Current income taxes are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax
relates to items recognized outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates position taken in the tax
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iii)

3.08 Lease:

returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subjected to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced totheextent that itisno longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
taxasset to berecovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred income tax assets is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
tax loss can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to
the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period. In the year in which the Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT)
credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the
recommendations contained in puidance issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit
and loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each
balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to
the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the specified period.

Asalessee:

"The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind
AS 116. ldentification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant
judgment in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable
discount rate. The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease,
together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the
Company is reasonably certain Lo exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an

123. KAISER CORPORATION LTD.



KAISER CORPORATION LTD. THIRTY SECOND ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

3.09

3.10

option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise
the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the
non-cancellable period of a lease.The discount rate is generally based on the borrowing rate
specificto thelease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.”

Impairment of assets:
Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the
financial assets which are not [air valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade
receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL. Forall other [inancial assets, expected credit losses are measured atan amount equal to the
12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in eredit risk from initial recognition
in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is
required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of profit
orloss.

Non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether thereisan indicationthat anasset may
be impaired. Ifany indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset. unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets.

If such assets are considered Lo be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds
the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement
of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount,
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognized for the assetin prior years.

"Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets”

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
aresult of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required tosettle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for
example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
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liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The contingent liability is not recognized in books of
account butits existenceis disclosed in financial statements.

A contingent assets, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, an entity shall disclosea
brief description of the nature of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting period, and,
where practicable, an estimate of their financial effect, measured using the principles set out for
provisionsinInd AS10.

Fairvalue measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfler the
liability takes place either:

Inthe principal market for the asset orliability, or
Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
actin their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the assetinits highestand best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the assetinits highestand best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the [ir value measurement asawhole:

Level 1-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

" Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable”

" Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable”

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on arecurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair
value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at
fair wvalue, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in
discontinued operations.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting
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policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevantdocuments.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with
relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of [air value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level ofthe fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Financialinstruments
Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions ol the instrument.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets
which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction costare attributed
to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

Financial assets are subsequently measured at

Amortised cost: Financial assels that are held within a business model whose objective is to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest, are subsequently measured atamortised cost using the effective interest
rate ('EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR and loss arising from
impairment, ifany is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL): A financial asset not classified as either amortised
cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all
changes in [air value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognized as
‘otherincome’ in the Statementof Profitand Loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets that are held withina
business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR
method and impairment losses, il any are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On
derecognition, cumulative pain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified [rom the
equity to ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Trade Receivables and Loans:

Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses.
The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated [uture cash income through the expected life of
financial instrument.

Debtinstruments:

Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income ('FVOCI’) or fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL) till derecognition
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on the basis of (i) the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and (ii) the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the linancial asset.

(a) Measured at amortised cost: Financial assets that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate ("EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The
amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognised in the
Statement of Profitand Loss.

(b)  Measured at [air value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets that are
held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial
assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).
Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ in the
Statementof Profitand Loss.

(€] Measured at fair value through profit or loss: A financial asset not classified as either
amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at
fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income
ifany, recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Equity Instruments:

All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at
fair value, the Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either
at FVOCl or FVTPL.

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes
on an equity instrument is recognised as other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCL Fair value changes
excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognised in OCL
Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other
income’in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash llows from the
asset.

Financial Liabilities:
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost
unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of borrowings, trade
payables and other financial liabilities, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The
Company’s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade payables and other financial
liabilities.
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Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all
changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

(a)  Borrowings : Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using
the EIR method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent thatit is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that seme or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period ofthe facility to which it relates.

"(b) Trade and Other Payables:These amounts represent liabilities for poods and services
provided to the Company prior to the end of linancial year which are unpaid. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured atamortised cost using the effective interest method”

(€] Financial Guarantee Obligations:The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as
the present value of the difference in net cash llows between the contractual payments
under the debt instrument and the payments that would be required without the
guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming
the obligations. Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values as on the
date of transition are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of
the equity investment.”

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

"When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in
the Statement of Profitand Loss.”

Dffsetting Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company
or the counter party.

Investments in subsidiaries

"Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed
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and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in
subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and carrying amounts are
recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss."

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits which are subjecttoan insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, as they are considered an integral part of the Company's
cash manapement.

Earnings per share

Basicearnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the
equity sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares,
other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity
shares outstanding, withouta corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for the effects ol all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment Reporting:

Based on "Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chiel
Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company's performance and allocates the resources
based onananalysis of various performance indicators by business segments.

Segment Policies:

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies
adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.
Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on an appropriate basis.
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Motes Forming Part of Standalone Fitnancial Statements for the year ended 3158 March 2025
21 Contingent liabilities

The Company has provided corporate guarantess (o lending banks on behalf of s 5u5:|:-'!d|;|r}r' Company. As on Balance Sheet date, the
subsidiary has drawn an amount of Re, 1370.76 lakhs (PY Re, 145630 lakhs) from the lending Banks,

22 Capital Commitment
The Company does not have any capital commitment as ot 31 March 2025 (31 Macch 2024: Nil),

23 Related party disclosures

i} Related party relationships:

Subsidiary Company Kicon International Limited

Mr Bhushanlal Arora (Manaeing Divector)

Me Jinal Matani (Company Secretary; Besigned wee.f. 5th
April, 2025)

Fey management personnel M il [ain (Company Secretary; Appornted weef il April,
2025

Mrs: Lyla Jamesheed Mehta (Chief Financial Officer)

Motes:
The relationsbups as mentonied above pertain to those related parties with whom fransactions have taken place durng the vear.

bl Related party relationships have been determined on the basis of the requirement of the Tndinn Accounting Standard (Tnd AS)-24
“Helated Party Disclosure” and the same have been identified by the management relied upon by the suditors.
ii)  Transactions with related parties:

Disclosure in refalion to ransaction with related parties
(Rs. fm Lakhis)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

DHrector's remuneration
Bhushanlal Arora 508 24.52

Remuneration paid to KMFP other than Director

Miss Jinal Patani {Company Secretary) 394 3.75

Sale of goods

Kicon International Limibed® 5.34 326
E X s 3153

ifil  Kalances with related parties:
(st Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Investment in Equity Shares
Kicon Intermational Limited 462,16 455.08

6216 459.08
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Mises Forming Part of Standalome Finanzial Statements for the vear onded 30st March 2025

#  Segmental Informatiim
The Board of Directors al the Company enliectively hres been idendified s the Chief Dperating, Deosion Malker (CODM) s defired by ol
NS TEE, Drpeeatingg S The DO wsaluains tha Com pasy's poshermaige and allocases rosoioes Dased o an analyss of vadous
perfornance indicutors by industry dasses. Accondengdy, segment Gixismagion has beo preseoted for sdustry classes. The Cospany
operates o sngle business and geographical sepment viz Printing, of labeh, packaging matedats. Magasines and amtichs of stationery
within [nfia. Anvedingl, ni separabe disciosans ki primsary business and secondary geographical segmmt ane reguinesd:

28 Hatie
T, I Lakfoad
Fanticulass Fue the vear endaad Far the year ended Warlamw fteannme far Varance
I March nos 51 Blarch 2024
Current Assiks
Trricgtigriss - -
Tride Kaxovivabde X4 L
iZash and Cash Equrvalents ] 543
Crhee Pinancid sssets .
CMbwr Curmst Azt Hin TR
Curnent Aasetn {4) irAs TRNT
Current Liabilities
Borrawmps . -
Irade payables 7 a1
b findaneal labilifles L) I ]
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TR e Laktiad
[ Farticulars Fur the year ended For the year ended Varlance Reasnme far Varlance
M March D5 X1 March 2024
Inwentory Turnaver Ratin
Imentory - =
Turmonen EE [EEAN
lowentory Turnover Halin - - -
by LT R | '
Trade receivalslon Turaver Ratio 518 A7 Lo Mt e
tumiETer
i TurmovesTiebtom |
_ Vananop = due o imcrease
Trade Mayable Tatrmover Habip SER i AL A
Pierglases arel Cadiors
tred it PurchasesC redrioms)
Warriane s (ue b fredacarin
Mot Capital Tumever rabio 14 I3 1 &84% | Tumpver and Sharehalder’s
Fursds
| Toriad Sales! Shareholder's Ponda)
Thwire e a dedrgase iy e rabin
el Tristit Rakio BT 025 G| oo bcrutey it prioh
after tax m liess than % mcnease m
i
i Mt Profit after Tas) Tirnomeer |
Hetum O Capltal Emplayed
arrung, bulone Inaerestand Ly 781 .58
Togal Equiry R s 1K) 4T IR
Helugn v Caprital Eimployed 141 116 af g, Vanance mdue b norenss in
P R IR el Tiokal Bty
[ ERTEY Tuslal Evpaity ]
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migiber Maii M al Shames e il Tkl Shares
FASK Holdings Limitod  7essow T ]
Amay Enterprises Limsted TS 14.80% o
\ERIT LBy Privae Lisied SETEO 1L15% [
L Rachat an_p; Provabe Llenisnd SRR [[uE s r
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27 Retirement benefits

a) () Defined contribution plan
Thee follow g amount recognized as an expenss in Statement of profit and loss en sccount of provident fund and other lunds, Theoe are
1o Other obligatbons other than the contribotion payakle t the respective aothomties,
(R I Lakfis)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contribution to provident und and other defined contribution funds 232 (FEle
Bl The Company has b defindd beneflt plan namely Gratuity for all s emplovees in the form of Group Gratuity -cum- Life Assurance

Scherme, The liability for the defined benefit i determined on the basis of valuation made under the scheme at year end, which is.

caloulatedd vusing the projected unit cridit methaod,

The retiremnient benefit abligatons recogmized in the balance shewl represents The present value of the defined benefil obligations ay

achusted for uriredognized past service codt

The following lakle sets oul the funded status of the gratuly plan and the amounts recoegnized i the Company's fimoncal statements as at

s March 2035,

PRe In lakhs)

Yearended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 325 31 March 2024
Change in present value of obligation
Present value of obligaton as ab 1 April 12349 1200
Interest cost .50 rs
Service cost IL(H G06
Honefits paid -
Actuarial ﬁ“winj.‘llm o -csb|ig..|lifm 124 4143
Present value of obligation as at 31 March 14.61 12.3%
Reconciliation of plin assets
Flan ag=arts as at begenoeng, of the year 1541 1431
Expected return on plan assets 118 Loe
Cpntributions during the year Lo
Al justemeint LAl
Menefits paid -
Actuacial {gains | bosdes -
Plan assets as al the end of the year 16.58 1540
Aol fecognised in the Balanee Sheet
P'resent value of obligation, s at 31 March 1461 12.%%
Fair value of plan assets as at 31 March 165 1540
Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheel 11407 [2.014
Particalass Year emded Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Expense l\ﬂ:ng;ui:ud in the statement of pmﬂt amdd loss
Current service cosl .05 LR
Irkeresl cast 1.4 {(L.75
Expected relurmn on plan assets (118 (1.0
Total expense champed to profit and loss account [before tax] [A] 021 {0L2RH
Amount fecorded In Other Comprehensive Income (0CT)
Remeasurement during the period due to @
Actuarial loss ( (gain} acising from change in financial assumptaons 124 [1142)
Actuarial loss § {_E.ILr'lr a.rl:.l.nE frovm 'I'J.'I.-!.'IJEL' 13 Ill:mlﬁm].‘lh:ll.' .IH.'“.II.'I.‘I.FI‘ﬁI.rI'L‘\
Aactuarial Ioss ¢ (gain} arising on account of experience changes
Amounl frecognised in O] [before Lax] [B] 124 (042
Clesing amoun! recognised in OCT and profit and loss [A+H) 1.0 (et
Met [ability |s bifurcated as follows @
Current {2457} (50T
Mon-currend -
Met liability 1207 =31
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Actuarial assumptions wsed i caleulatyons of gratuity 15 s onders:

Pasticulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Diiscount rate F25h 75
Expected return on plin assets 7o 7 hil
Expected sabe of salary increase 500 S0
Attriation eabe 1-3'% depending on age | 1-3% depending on age
Mertality EAC{200R-08 LiTtimatte | LIC (200608} Liltimate

28  Fimancial instroments: Fair valoes and sk management

The careving value and faie value of Ginancial instruments by coliegorles as Of March 202% are as follows

IR, 1 fivkfes)
Particulars Atamortiszed | Al fair value through| Al fair valoe Total carrying Total fairvalae
custs profit and loss threiugh OC] valiae
Assein
Trude recelvables .04 214 20,14
Cashand cush aquiv alpnts 43 4.13 4,33
{Other current financial assetn - *
2847 - 2447 2447
Liabilities
Shaort berm 'h.:-rnm'inpl,i. . -
Irucde payililes 277 ko 237
Oithed current financial labilskies 403 - 4.3 N
7l . - 7A0 740
The carryingg value and farr value of financial instrumwents by categaries as of 31 March 2024 are as follows
185, i fekfes)
Farticulprs At amartised At fair value Al fair value Tatal carrying Total fair value
custs through profit and | through OCI value
foss
Assots
Trade feciavables H.70 - &, 7 &0
Cish and cash equivalents 1543 ‘ ¥ 15.43 1543
Uither current fimancial asseis ] ' i - -
3713 - - 2213 13
Liabilities
Shart terin Borrowiangs - = - - -
Trade payables .07 - - 207 107
Dithier current Anancial Dabilsbes 4.0 . 4.2 447
6.99 - - (L] [l

The fair values of the hnancial assets and financial labslities is ncluded ar e amoont at which the imstrument could be rm;h:lngud m a current ransachon
Bt wllllng part ig=s, orthaer than i & forced or |iL'||.| idak i sl
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29

an

Earnings Mer Share

{Rs. In Lakls)

. As al As at

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Mgt priofit affer tax available for equilty ghare A9 5.5h
holders for basic and diluted caming per share
{Amount in Lakhs)
Weighted  average number of pguity  shares 3,26,21,020 526210
outstanding during the vear for basle and diluted
earmings per share {Mumber)
Face value of share (Bs,} 1.00 100
Basic and diluted cornings per share (s 0012 0011

Trade Payvable for the year ended 318t March 2025

Ry, i Jaklis)

05 [or following periods from due date of payment
Less Than one vear | One to bwo vear Two to Three Mire than Total
PartHeulars
Years Three Years
1. MSME 0.56 - - - 0.56
2.0t hers 2.21 - - . 121
3 DHsputed Duyes- MSME - - - -
4. Chsputed Dues- Dthers - - - - o
Total 277 - - . 277
Trade Payable for the year ended 31st March 2024 (R, v fakches)
O for following periods from due date of payment
; Less Than one vear | One to two year Two lo Thrae More than Total
Particulars
Years Three Years
1. M5ME 057 - - - .57
2. Others 1.51 - - - 1.51
A Disputed Dues- MSME - - - -
4. Dsputed Dues- Others R
Total 207 - - - 207
31 Trade Receivable for the year ended 31st March 2025 {Rs.am Jakhs)
(Vs for fellowing perinds from due date of payment
; Less Than one year | One to two year Two to Three Muore than Total
Particulars
Years Three Years
L, Undisputed Trade Receivable considered good 4 - - - 2014
2 Undisputed  Trade Receivable  considered - - < -
Doaeabsidul
3. Disputed Trade Receivable considered good - B
4, THaputed Trade Receivable considered Dhoubtful - - - =
Tatal 20,14 - - - 2104
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Trade Receivable for the year ended 31st March 2024 (Re. am Jakirs)
Particulars (s for following periods from due date of payment
Ligs Than one vear | One to bwo year Two to Three More than Total
Years Three Years
L. Undisputed Trade Receivable considered good ] - - - .70

2, Undisputed Trade Receivable  considered 5 % z E 2
Droubtiul

3. Disputed Trade Receivable considered goods

4. Disputed Trade Receivable considered Doubtful - - - = =

Total .70 - - = 6.70
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Critical accounting judgements and sources of estimation uncertainties

"The preparation of the financial statements requires the management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities and the accompanying disclosures including the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed ona ongoing basis. They are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have
a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimateis revised il the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future
periodsif the revision affects both currentand future periods.”

Detailed information about each of these estimates, assumptions and judgements is included
in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line
item of financial statements. However, the following are the key assumptions and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty concerning the future, at the end of the reporting year that
may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assels
and liabilities within the next financial years.
(i) Usefullives of property, plant and equipment:
The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at
the end of each reporting year. The financial effect of this reassessment, assuming the

assels are held until the end of their estimated useful lives, is an increase/decrease the
depreciation expense in the current financial year and future years.

(ii) Estimationofdefined benefit obligation:

The cost of defined benefits plan including other post employment benefits and the
present value of such obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities
invelved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit ebligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All the assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.
iii) Impairmentofnon-finanicalassets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. [fany indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash flows that are largely independent of those [rom other assets or group of assets.
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

iv) Impairmentoffinancial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk ol
default and expected loss rates. The Company used judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end ol each reporting period.
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33 In the opinion of management, trade receivables and other financial assets have a value on
realisation in the ordinary course ol business at least equal to the amount at which they are
stated in the balance sheet. The provision for depreciation and all known liabilities is adequate
and notin excess of the amount reasonably stated.

34  CodeonSocial Security, 2020:

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the
contributions by the Company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour
and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13,
2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by
the Ministry. The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are
notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the
Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impactare published.

35 There was no impairment loss on the fixed assets on the basis of review carried out by the
management in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-36 ‘Impairment of
Assets’

36 Management has conducted the physical verification of Inventories and provide the
management representation for the same. The company has not taken any credit facilities from
bank.

37 The company has not done any transaction with companies struck off under section 248
Companies Act 2013.

38 As per the management and those charge with the Goverance has given declaration that the
company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial instutuion or otherlender.

39 Events after the end of the reporting date

No subsequent event has been observed which may required an adjustment to the statement of
financial position.

40 Previous years’ lipures have been regrouped / rearranged, wherever necessary to conform to
the current year's presentation.

Signatures to Notes 1 to 40

As per our report of even date attached

FOR Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Kaiser Corporation Limited

Firm’s Reg. No. 109420W

Shabbir 5 Bagasrawala Bhushanlal Arora Rajendra Ramchandra Vaze
Partner Managing Director Director

Membership No. 039865 DIN No. 00416032 DIN No. 02244651

Place : Mumbai Jinal Jain Lyla Jamsheed Mehta

Date : 30.05.2025 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Membership No. A59185
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